

NAVAL POSTGRADUATE SCHOOL

MONTEREY, CALIFORNIA

THESIS

APPLYING INFORMATION DESIGN PRINCIPLES AND METHODS TO OPERATIONS IN THE INFORMATION ENVIRONMENT

by

Bruce A. Manuel Jr.

June 2021

Thesis Advisor: Co-Advisor: Second Reader: Ying Zhao Walter A. Kendall Daniel T. Cunningham

Approved for public release. Distribution is unlimited.

REPORT DOCUMENTATION PAGE		Form Approved OMB No. 0704-0188	
Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 1 hour per response, including the time for reviewing instruction, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to Washington headquarters Services, Directorate for Information Operations and Reports, 1215 Jefferson Davis Highway, Suite 1204, Arlington, VA 22202-4302, and to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0704-0188) Washington, DC 20503.			
1. AGENCY USE ONLY (Leave blank)	2. REPORT DATE June 2021	3. REPORT TY	PE AND DATES COVERED Master's thesis
 4. TITLE AND SUBTITLE APPLYING INFORMATION OPERATIONS IN THE INFO 6. AUTHOR(S) Bruce A. Mar 		THODS TO	5. FUNDING NUMBERS
Naval Postgraduate School Monterey, CA 93943-5000	ZATION NAME(S) AND ADDF		8. PERFORMING ORGANIZATION REPORT NUMBER
9. SPONSORING / MONITO ADDRESS(ES) N/A	ORING AGENCY NAME(S) AN	D	10. SPONSORING / MONITORING AGENCY REPORT NUMBER
11. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES The views expressed in this thesis are those of the author and do not reflect the official policy or position of the Department of Defense or the U.S. Government.			
12a. DISTRIBUTION / AVA Approved for public release. D			12b. DISTRIBUTION CODE A
13. ABSTRACT (maximum 200 words) The flood of information has saturated the battlespace, and it is imperative that commanders and their staffs are able to sift through the irrelevant information and pull out the actionable information required to make decisions. The objective of the proposed project was to apply Information Design (ID) principles and methods to communicate clear, effective, efficient, and relevant information to decision makers when planning operations in the information environment (OIE). The information received was prioritized according to the CARVER Methodology in order to smartly design information presented to Marine Expeditionary Force Information Group (MIG) commanders. Visual Analytics was the mechanism to present visually appealing information that was clear, engaging, and easily absorbed. The focus of the Scraawl software suite. While a useful tool for discovering large amounts of social data quickly, the practical use of Scraawl to the Marine information practitioner would be limited due to classification issues. However, it was found that influence within the analyzed communities spreads rapidly and widely according to experience of the source, physical geography, meaningful and consistent engagements, and media utilized. This thesis showed how effective an open-source tool can be to reduce the cognitive load of the MIG commander, enhancing efficient decision-making.			
information command center, I	14. SUBJECT TERMS15. NUMBER OFinformation, information design, ID, operations in the information environment, OIE, information command center, ICC, Marine Expeditionary Force Information Group, MIG, measures of performance, MOP, measure of effectiveness, MOE, Department of Defense,15. NUMBER OF PAGES 11116. PRICE CODE		
DOD, People's Liberation Arm 17. SECURITY		19. SECURITY	20. LIMITATION OF
CLASSIFICATION OF REPORT Unclassified	CLASSIFICATION OF THIS PAGE Unclassified	CLASSIFICATI ABSTRACT Unclassified	
NSN 7540-01-280-5500			Standard Form 298 (Rev. 2-89)

Standard Form 298 (Rev. 2-89) Prescribed by ANSI Std. 239-18

Approved for public release. Distribution is unlimited.

APPLYING INFORMATION DESIGN PRINCIPLES AND METHODS TO OPERATIONS IN THE INFORMATION ENVIRONMENT

Bruce A. Manuel Jr. Major, United States Marine Corps BS, United States Naval Academy, 2008

Submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of

MASTER OF SCIENCE IN INFORMATION WARFARE SYSTEMS ENGINEERING

from the

NAVAL POSTGRADUATE SCHOOL June 2021

Approved by: Ying Zhao Advisor

> Walter A. Kendall Co-Advisor

Daniel T. Cunningham Second Reader

Alex Bordetsky Chair, Department of Information Sciences

ABSTRACT

The flood of information has saturated the battlespace and it is imperative that commanders, and their staffs are able to sift through the irrelevant information and pull out the actionable information required to make decisions. The objective of the proposed project was to apply Information Design (ID) principles and methods to communicate clear, effective, efficient, and relevant information to decision makers when planning operations in the information environment (OIE). The information received was prioritized according to the CARVER Methodology in order to smartly design information presented to Marine Expeditionary Force Information Group (MIG) commanders. Visual Analytics was the mechanism to present visually appealing information that was clear, engaging, and easily absorbed. The focus of the research centered on the spread of influence within communities of interest discovered through use of the Scraawl software suite. While a useful tool for discovering large amounts of social data quickly, the practical use of Scraawl to the Marine information practitioner would be limited due to classification issues. However, it was found that influence within the analyzed communities spreads rapidly and widely according to experience of the source, physical geography, meaningful and consistent engagements, and media utilized. This thesis showed how effective an open-source tool can be to reduce the cognitive load of the MIG commander, enhancing efficient decision-making.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I.	INT	RODUCTION	1
	A.	PROBLEM STATEMENT	1
	B.	PURPOSE AND RESEARCH QUESTIONS	3
	C.	THESIS ORGANIZATION	4
II.	BAC	CKGROUND	5
	A.	DEFINING THE INFORMATION ENVIRONMENT	5
	B.	THE FIELD OF INFOLOGY	6
		1. The Communications Process	6
		2. Meeting Information Design	7
	C.	CARVER THREAT ANALYSIS AND VULNERABILITY ASSESSMENT	
		1. Origins	
	D.	VISUAL ANALYTICS	
	21	1. Understanding How to Use CARVER	
		2. What Is Visual Analytics?	
		3. Social Network Analysis	
	E.	CHALLENGES WITHIN THE MARINE CORPS	
		1. 21st Century Competition	
		2. The Necessity to Dominate the Information Domain	
	F.	MARINE CORPS INFORMATION OPERATIONS	
		1. ICC Composition and Functions	
		2. Software / Systems	
III.	ME	THODOLOGY	17
	A.	INFLUENCE CELL	17
	B.	SCRAAWL	18
		1. Communities of Interest	20
		2. Influence Discovery and Influence Analytics	21
		3. CARVER Metrics	25
	C.	OPERATIONAL VIGNETTE CASE STUDY	27
		1. Strategic and Operational Context	27
		2. Situation	29
IV.	RES	ULTS AND ANALYSIS	31
	А.	RESULTS FROM KEYWORD SEARCHES	31

		1.	Keyword Search 1: ((dod australia) OR (dod fiji) OR (dod new zealand) OR (dod papua new guinea) OR (dod palau))
		2.	Keyword Search 2: ((prc australia) OR (prc new zealand) OR (prc fiji) OR (prc palau) OR (prc papua new guinea))41
		3.	Keyword Search 3: ((pla australia) OR (pla new zealand) OR (pla fiji) OR (pla papua new guinea) OR (pla palau))49
		4.	Keyword Search 4: ((us military australia) OR (us military fiji) OR (us military new zealand) OR (us military papua new guinea) OR (us military palau))58
		5.	Account Monitoring Search 1: (fromsonoftaiwan OR @sonoftaiwan) OR (fromUSPacificFleet OR @USPacificFleet) OR (fromthejointstaff OR @thejointstaff) OR (fromINDOPACOM OR @INDOPACOM) OR (fromWIONews OR @WIONews) OR (from:PacificMarines OR @PacificMarines) OR (from:Japan_pac OR @Japan_pac) OR (from:CN_Australia OR @CN_Australia) OR (from:Global Mil Info OR @Global Mil Info)
		6.	Account Monitoring Search 2: (fromSinoDefence OR @SinoDefence) OR (fromzlj517 OR @zlj517) OR (fromCDF_Aust OR @CDF_Aust) OR (fromDeptDefence OR @DeptDefence) OR (fromRfmf_Media OR @Rfmf_Media) OR (fromADFinPNG OR @ @ADFinPNG) OR (from:CDF_PNGDF OR @CDF_PNGDF) OR (from:IPDefenseForum OR @IPDefenseFOrum) OR (from:NZDefenceForce OR @NZDefenceForce) OR (from:CDF_NZ OR @CDF_NZ)71
	B.	ANA	LYSIS
		1.	Data Trends79
		2.	CARVER Results80
v.	CON	CLUS	IONS AND SUGGESTIONS FOR FUTURE RESEARCH83
v .	A.		ICLUSIONS
	A. B.		URE RESEARCH
	D.	гот 1.	Alternative Application 1: Other Scraawl Tools
		1. 2.	Alternative Application 1: Other Scraawi Tools
		4.	Router for Scraawl (SIPR Scraawl)
		3.	Alternative Application 3: Enhanced Social Network
			Analysis
		4.	Alternative Application 4: Other Software
		5.	Alternative Application 5: Other MIG Tools85

LIST OF REFERENCES	
INITIAL DISTRIBUTION LIST	

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1.	Pettersson and Forlag Communication Process. Source: Pettersson and Forlag (1990)
Figure 2.	Visualization of "Meeting Information Design"7
Figure 3.	Daniel Keim graphic of Visual Analytics. Source: Keim et al. (n.d.)11
Figure 4.	Notional MIG ICC Watch Floor. Source: Information Command Center Concept of Employment (2020)15
Figure 5.	Scraawl Community Detection Image. Source: Scraawl (2021)21
Figure 6.	Influence Discovery Graphic. Source: Scraawl (2021)23
Figure 7.	Influence Analytics Graphic Source: Scraawl (2021)24
Figure 8.	Great Sea Region
Figure 9.	Keyword Search 1: Basic Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)31
Figure 10.	Keyword Search 1: Mention Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)33
Figure 11.	Keyword Search 1: Retweet Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)34
Figure 12.	Geographic Tweet Data Organized by Data Type. Source. Scraawl (2021)
Figure 13.	Keyword Search 1: Influence Discovery. Source: Scraawl (2021)
Figure 14.	Keyword Search 1: Comparative Influence Scores for user @planet4589. Source: Scraawl (2021)
Figure 15.	Social graph for user @planet4589's social cluster. Source: Scraawl (2021)
Figure 16.	Top Connected Users by Degree. Source: Scraawl (2021)
Figure 17.	Keyword Search 1: Community Detection Metrics and Visualization. Source: Scraawl (2021)
Figure 18.	Keyword Search 1: Community Analytics for top three users in community. Source: Scraawl (2021)40
Figure 19.	Keyword Search 2 Basic Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)41

Figure 20.	Keyword Search 2 Mention Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)42	2
Figure 21.	User @eluttwak's Mention Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)4	3
Figure 22.	Keyword Search 2 Retweet Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)44	4
Figure 23.	Twitter Profile Analysis: @eluttwak. Source: Scraawl (2021)44	4
Figure 24.	Keyword Search 2 Geographic-associated Tweets. Source: Scraawl (2021)	5
Figure 25.	Keyword Search 2 Influence Discovery Metrics. Source: Scraawl (2021)	6
Figure 26.	Top Connected users for Keyword Search 2. Source: Scraawl (2021)4	7
Figure 27.	Social Graph for User @eluttwak. Source: Scraawl (2021)4	7
Figure 28.	Keyword Search 2 Community Detection Visualization. Source: Scraawl (2021)48	8
Figure 29.	Keyword Search 3: Basic Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)49	9
Figure 30.	Keyword Search 3: User Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)50	0
Figure 31.	Keyword Search 3: Mention Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)5	1
Figure 32.	Keyword Search 3: Retweet Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)	2
Figure 33.	Keyword Search 3: Locations. Source: Scraawl (2021)	3
Figure 34.	Keyword Search 3: Locations (Barcelona). Source Scraawl (2021)54	4
Figure 35.	Keyword Search 3: Influence Discovery. Source. Scraawl (2021)	5
Figure 36.	Keyword Search 3: Social Graph. Source: Scraawl (2021)50	6
Figure 37.	Keyword Search 3: Influencer's Social Graph. Source: Scraawl (2021)	6
Figure 38.	Keyword Search 3: Community Detection. Source: Scraawl (2021)5	7
Figure 39.	Keyword Search 4: Basic Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)58	8
Figure 40.	Keyword Search 4: Mention Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)	9
Figure 41.	Keyword Search 4: Retweet Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)60	0

Figure 42.	Keyword Search 4: Location Data. Source: Scraawl (2021)	61
Figure 43.	Keyword Search 4: Influence Discovery Scores. Source: Scraawl (2021).	62
Figure 44.	Keyword Search 4: Influence Discover Scores for User @jaredferrie.	62
Figure 45.	Keyword Search 4: Community Detection Visualization. Source: Scraawl (2021).	63
Figure 46.	Community Analytics: User @jaredferrie. Source: Scraawl (2021)	64
Figure 47.	AM Search 1 Results. Source: Scraawl (2021)	65
Figure 48.	AM Search 1 Mention Data. Source: Scraawl (2021)	66
Figure 49.	AM Search 1: Retweet Data. Source: Scraawl (2021)	67
Figure 50.	AM Search 1: Geo-associated Tweet Data. Source: Scraawl (2021)	68
Figure 51.	AM Search 1: Influence Discovery. Source: Scraawl (2021)	69
Figure 52.	AM Search 1: User @wionews Social Graph. Source: Scraawl (2021)	70
Figure 53.	AM Search 1: User @wionews Influence by Degree. Source: Scraawl (2021).	71
Figure 54.	AM Search 2: Basic Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)	72
Figure 55.	AM Search 2: Mention Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)	73
Figure 56.	AM Search 2: Retweet Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)	74
Figure 57.	AM Search 2: Location Data. Source: Scraawl (2021)	75
Figure 58.	AM Search 2: Location Heat Map. Source: Scraawl (2021)	76
Figure 59.	AM Search 2: Influential Users Scores. Source: Scraawl (2021)	77
Figure 60.	AM Search 2: Influential Users Scores by Degree. Source: Scraawl (2021).	78
Figure 61.	AM Search 2: Social Graph with User @zlj517 callout. Source: Scraawl (2021)	79

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1.	CARVE Metrics and Considerations. Adapted from Labaj and Bencie (2018)	8
Table 2.	Scraawl SocL Search Accounts	20
Table 3.	Scraawl Keyword Searches	25
Table 4.	Criticality Values	26
Table 5.	Accessibility Values	26
Table 6.	Recoverability Values	26
Table 7.	Vulnerability Values	26
Table 8.	Effect Values	27
Table 9.	Recognizability Values	27
Table 10.	Search Key Findings	81
Table 11.	CARVER Results	82

LIST OF ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

AM	account monitoring
CA	civil affairs
CARVE	Criticality, Accessibility, Recuperability, Vulnerability, and Espy
CARVER	Criticality, Availability, Recoverability, Vulnerability, Effects, Recognizability
CIA	Central Intelligence Agency
COMMSTRAT	strategic communications
DCI	Deputy Commandant for Information
DIME	Diplomatic, Informational, Military, Economic
EABO	expeditionary advanced base operations
EMSO	electromagnetic spectrum operations
GDP	gross domestic product
ICC	Information Command Center
ID	information design
IE	information environment
ΙΟΤ	internet of things
IWC	Information Warfare Coordinator
LOCE	littoral operations in a contested environment
MEF	Marine Expeditionary Force
MHF	Marine Expeditionary Force Headquarters Group
MIG	MEF Information Group

MILDEC	military deception
OIE	operations in the information environment
OPSEC	operations security
PPP	purchasing power parity
PSYOP	psychological operations
QGIS	Quantum Graphical Information System
SIGMAN	signature management
SIPR	secure internet protocol router
SNA	social network analysis
STO	special technical operations
US	United States
VA	visual analytics

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

I would like to thank the many individuals who contributed to the completion of this thesis. Many have contributed without knowing exactly how valuable their words and actions have been. I take this opportunity to express my gratitude.

From the Naval Postgraduate School, I thank my thesis team, Dr. Ying Zhao, Mr. Tony Kendall, Mr. Dan Cunningham, and Steve Iatrou, for their wisdom, guidance, and motivation to pursue this project. Many thanks to Susan Hawthorne for helping me improve the quality and professionalism of my writing. You have all been invaluable to this process. I can truly say that after two years here, your leadership has inspired my academic curiosity more powerfully than ever before.

Thank you to all the leaders who have provided invaluable professional mentorship over the past two years. I thank VADM Edward Moore USN (ret), RADM Sinclair Harris USN (ret.), CAPT and Mrs. Don Flowers USN (ret), Col Todd Lyons USMC (ret), Col Randy Pugh USMC, Col Ahmed Williamson USMC, LtCol David Forbell USMC, and CDR Lushan Hannah USCG for their wise counsel. The information practitioners at 1MEF Information Group who helped shape and refine my thoughts are truly indispensable to this project: Col Brian Rideout USMC, LtCol Tom Kulisz, Maj Sarah Derryberry USMC, Capt James Brown USMC, Capt Bud Geldmacher USMC, and Capt Luke Helwig USMC. A special thank you to Ms. Alexis Low and Dr. Lisa Holt at Intelligent Automation, Inc. and the whole Scraawl team for making my thesis possible.

Most importantly, I am deeply grateful to my family for all their love and support: Bruce Manuel Sr., for your listening and critical ear; Ana Manuel, for your thoughts and prayers; my wife, Jessica, for her unconditional love, understanding, flexibility, and support; and kids, Bam, Zeke, and Aria: thank you for your patience. Daddy loves you so much.

I. INTRODUCTION

A. PROBLEM STATEMENT

The United States was universally known as the world's sole superpower at the beginning of the 21st century. One way that the U.S. military perpetuated that status was the ability to move about the globe freely. This freedom of movement enabled another unmatched capability: the ability to securely and reliably access and transmit sensitive information around the globe instantly. It is no longer assured. This dominance in the information environment (IE) is no longer uncontested. America now has near-peer competitors and irregular threats that threaten our freedom of movement (Department of Defense [DOD], 2018). In addition, the prevalence of the internet of things (IoT) and internet access is growing for our competitors and adversaries alike. The ability of our competitors and adversaries to wage warfare and influence mass populations in the IE is easier than ever and increasing exponentially. In recognition of future competition in the IE, the Secretary of Defense established Information as one of the seven joint warfighting functions in 2017. That same year, Deputy Commandant for Information (DC/I) was established under to an authorization granted in the FY 17 National Defense Authorization Act. A lieutenant general now controls all facets of IE operations for the Marine Corps. In addition, the Marine Corps renamed the MEF Headquarters Group (MHG) to be called the MEF Information Group (MIG). The purpose of the MIG is to enable the Marine Corps to operate with "freedom of action in and through the information environment to preserve, generate, and apply informational power in concert with fires and maneuver to accelerate tempo and achieve physical and cognitive advantage." (Capt Bud Geldmacher, email to author, July 20, 2020). Two years later, in 2019, the Commandant of the Marine Corps established "Information" as the seventh warfighting function for all Marines.

The commander of the MIG established the Information Command Center (ICC) as a sub-agency to function as the command-and-control center for operations in the information environment (OIE). The ICC is led by the Information Coordinator (IC). The ICC is comprised of various cells that provide capabilities based on the following functional areas: Communication strategy and operations (COMMSTRAT), Cyberspace

operations, Electromagnetic spectrum operations (EMSO), Space operations, Psychological operations (PSYOP), Intelligence operations, Signature management (SIGMAN), Civil Affairs (CA), Military deception (MILDEC), Operations security (OPSEC), and Special technical operations (STO) and activities. The composition of the ICC is dependent on and tailored to mission needs and the MIG commander's discretion. In support of the commander's priorities, each cell within the ICC provides the commander a comprehensive understanding of threats, vulnerabilities, and opportunities in the IE. These collectively are called "running estimates." The running estimates provided to the MIG commander support their decision-making by ensuring their commander's intent is implemented and that feedback on OIE is continuous.

The flood of information in OIE has saturated the battlespace and therefore the MIG commanders and their ICC staffs need ways to efficiently filter out the irrelevant information and pull in the actionable information required to make decisions. This thesis' purpose is to apply Information Design (ID) Principals and Methods to communicate clear, effective, efficient, and irrelevant information to decision makers when planning operations in the flooded and saturated Information Environment (IE). The running estimate produced by the ICC cells is the primary means by which assessment of OIE is conducted and disseminated.

Jacobson defines Information Design as both an "art and science" that is focused on the utility of information by human beings (Jacobson, 1999, p. 15). This definition also captures the essence of the metrics with which we gauge the value of ID; information is assembled purposefully, transmitted thoughtfully, and received (understood) effectively. With the successful implementation of these principles, effective action can be taken on the subject information. In terms of the MIG commander / ICC staff, this translates into the meaningful tactical application of military information power that seeks to edify the MIG commander and ICC staff, through an effective and efficient transfer of information.

General Berger, 38th Commandant of the Marine Corps, has prioritized managing the IE more responsibly and sensitively. He states the following: "Preserving the ability to command and control in a contested information network environment is paramount" (United States Marine Corps [USMC], 2019, p. 12) The burden is on information practitioners to institute the ID principles to maximize success within a contested battlespace.

There are multiple streams of input received by the MIG commander and the ICC staff. Creating a systematic process for the assembly, transmission, and receipt of information at the MIG is a worthwhile effort then to minimize confusion. The various cells within the ICC utilize sophisticated technical equipment and software that create military information power at the MIG (Information Command Center Concept of Employment, 2020). Military information power is "the total means of force or information capability applied against a relevant actor to enhance lethality, survivability, mobility, or influence" (Reynolds & Smith, 2020), two issues arise when attempting to synthesize these capabilities coherently. First, not all the systems integrate into a common platform for efficient utilization. Second, there is no agreed upon or universally used standard with which to evaluate and prioritize information. Information Design can streamline how the information is assembled, transmitted, and received so that the information pertinent to OIE can be communicated more effectively.

B. PURPOSE AND RESEARCH QUESTIONS

The purpose of this research is to create a systematic process that can be of benefit to all Marine OIE practitioners. Quality information that is presented well and is actionable enables the Marine Corps to become more credible and lethal. The process to curate that information should be efficient, purposeful, visually understandable, and duplicatable. This project seeks to leverage information design to do that.

The research questions to be evaluated are as follows:

- In what specific ways can information flow at the Marine Expeditionary Force Information Group (MIG) be enhanced?
- How can information pertinent to OIE be communicated more effectively?
- What are the relevant metrics and the current standards (MOEs / MOPs)?
- How does ID enhance the above?

C. THESIS ORGANIZATION

Chapter II describes the information environment in the 21st century, introduces the overarching field of Infology, discusses how this project will achieve the tenets of Information Design, introduces the CARVER methodology and its application to the information environment, describes the field of visual analytics, and finally sheds light on the Marine Corps' efforts in operating effectively in the information domain. Chapter III outlines the main tool of this project, Scraawl, the modules within Scraawl, and how these will be utilized in the case study that follows. In addition, Chapter III describes a notional case study in which the information received from Scraawl will be used to meet the principles of Information Design through the CARVER Methodology. Chapter IV describes the results and analysis of the previous chapter. Chapter V summarizes the conclusions and potential applications to future work.

II. BACKGROUND

A. DEFINING THE INFORMATION ENVIRONMENT

The Information Environment (IE) comprises all people, entities, systems, and organizations that interact with information in various ways (Cordray & Romanych, 2005). As recognized by the Marine Corps, these interactions can be the collection, dissemination, processing, or acting on the information. The people operating in the IE are typically classified as information practitioners, who, like other military professionals, maintain a part of their focus on improving decision-making and the decision-making cycle, the "O-O-D-A Loop" (Olsen, 2015, p. 58). Thus, the people, entities, systems, and organizations all fuse together to observe, orient, decide, and act on data and information (Enck, 2012, p. 123). The prevalence of information to military operations has compelled commands at all levels to fundamentally change how information is prioritized within traditional military operations (Potts, 2003, p. 20).

Nested within the information environment are three intertwined domains: the physical, informational, and cognitive (Cordray & Romanych, 2005, p. 7). First, the physical domain is composed of the people, systems, and structures that "enable individuals and organizations to create information-related effects" (Joint Chiefs of Staff [JCS], 2012, p. x). Next, the informational domain is composed of the content (information) itself, including how it is collected, processed, stored, disseminated, and protected (JCS, 2012, p. x). Last, and most importantly, is the cognitive domain, which contains the "attitudes, beliefs, and perceptions of those who transmit, receive, respond to, or act upon information" (JCS, 2012, p. x). This is the most important domain in the information environment as information generates and terminates in the minds of people. The cognitive (human) domain is impacted by and registers everything that occurs in the physical and informational dimensions of the IE (JCS, 2012, p. x). Thus, it is the central focus of operations in the IE.

B. THE FIELD OF INFOLOGY

1. The Communications Process

Pettersson and Forlag define infology as, " the science of verbal-visual presentation of information." They go on to further specify that Infology is concerned with how verbalvisual information should be designed to achieve the best communication between sender and receiver. Figure 1 attempts to visually represent the communication process.



Figure 1. Pettersson and Forlag Communication Process. Source: Pettersson and Forlag (1990).

As the graphic displays, the communication process can split into three separate but intertwined levels that are fluid and mutually support one another. The process naturally begins with the sender as the originator of an idea that desires to convey it to a target audience. The sender, as explained: "creates a representation of reality" (Pettersson et al., 1990). The representation is produced and prepared to be sent to the receiver. When the representation is designed in a way that the receiver interacts with it in the most intuitively and efficiently possible, then it has been smartly designed. This project attempts to leverage the principles of Information Design and apply them to OIE. These principles are the summarized as follows: the creation of information that is clear, targeted, and purposeful; is engaging and easily absorbed by the receiver; and is intuitive to the receiver on how to act on that information.

2. Meeting Information Design

An international group of Information Design faculty, appointed by the International Institute for Information Design, IIID, argued: "information design is the defining, planning, and shaping of the contents of a message and the environments in which it is presented, with the intention of satisfying the information needs of the intended recipients" (Simlinger, 2007, p. 8). This project seeks to meet this scope through the usage of the CARVER Target Analysis and Vulnerability Assessment Methodology and Visual Analytics, a subset of Information Design (Figure 2).



Figure 2. Visualization of "Meeting Information Design"

C. CARVER THREAT ANALYSIS AND VULNERABILITY ASSESSMENT

1. Origins

During the height of the Vietnam War, the CIA developed a methodology to assist CIA paramilitary units and U.S. military special operations forces select targets for destruction, in support of operational objectives (Labaj & Bencie, 2018, p. 15). The methodology was abbreviated with the acronym "CARVE" and stood for Criticality, Accessibility, Recuperability, Vulnerability, and Espy. As targets were selected, they were ranked according to the CARVE numerical metrics and given a value from 1 to 5. The higher the assigned number, the higher the likelihood that the target met those criteria.

In the latter years of the Vietnam War, the CARVE analysis would be universally taught as the most reliable way for the military to conduct target analysis (Labaj & Bencie, 2018, p. 15). However, with the rise of international terrorism, it became apparent that CARVE would no longer be suitable. Terrorist attacks all seemed to be predicated on particular goals, which would broadly be either political, economic, or religious. Operators in the CIA and military found that CARVE had no way of accounting for the effects of these attacks on a nation's politics, operations, populace, economy, or media. Therefore, CARVE transformed into CARVER as we know it today. It stands for Criticality, Accessibility, Recoverability, Vulnerability, Effect, and Recognizability (Labaj & Bencie, 2018, p. 18). Table 1 summarizes CARVE considerations.

Table 1.CARVE Metrics and Considerations.Adapted from Labaj and Bencie (2018).

Criteria	Consideration(s)
Criticality	Is this asset a single point of failure for the adversary?
Accessibility	How easy is it for friendlies to access the target?
Recoverability	How much time is needed to restore operations from a destroyed target?
Vulnerability	Can the desired results be achieved on the target?
Espy	Is the target easily recognizable?

As a targeting system, it utilizes a numerical matrix to do the following: identify high payoff targets, categorizes, and prioritizes those targets, and can assess vulnerabilities and consequences so that resources can be efficiently utilized.

D. VISUAL ANALYTICS

1. Understanding How to Use CARVER

This system has been adapted among many different entities from Special Operations Forces (SOF), the Department of Energy (DOE), Department of State (DOS), Department of Homeland Security (DHS) and other various private and public sector groups (Labaj & Bencie, 2018, p. 20). Within the MIG ICC, this methodology can be applied to the information received by the various cells. The cells can utilize CARVER analysis to prioritize what information needs to be communicated and how to present the data.

a. Criticality

Criticality is a measure of how important a target is to our adversaries and to achieving friendly objectives. Within each cell of the ICC, they will weigh information received based on its uniqueness and impact on the mission of the ICC and the commander's priorities.

b. Accessibility

Accessibility is a measure of how easily a target can be accessed. This measure works well within the context of information, as the majority of information the ICC processes is acquired by multiple means, based on technology used and classification.

c. Recoverability (Attribution, Deniability, Accountability)

Recoverability measures how well a system can recover from an attack. Within the information domain, this will measure how responsive an agency is once the MIG acts upon information received about it. Additional considerations for recoverability measure the ability of friendlies to attribute the information to an adversary, the deniability of the

information by that adversary, and the ability to hold the adversary accountable for those actions.

d. Vulnerability

Vulnerability is a measure that demonstrates how easy it is to act upon a target, or how easy it is for the ICC cells to act upon information received. The ability to exploit the information is what distinguishes this from Accessibility.

e. Effect

Effect will measure the amount of direct loss from an attack. This is nuanced within the information domain, although effects of the use of military information power can be measured through a variety of indirect means (sentiment analysis, etc.). As stated above, the Effect can be further defined by their impacts on a nation's politics, operations, populace, economy, or media.

f. Recognizability

This attribute measures how easy it is to identify a target as significant by friendlies or adversaries. Within the information space, the targets of exploitation can be harder to verify. However, since all entities send and use information in some respect, the significance placed on the communicated message can provide clues into an adversary's weight on the information.

2. What Is Visual Analytics?

Daniel Keim et al. (n.d., p. 1) define Visual Analytics as, "the science of analytical reasoning supported by interactive visual interfaces." Data and information have been produced faster than mankind has been able to analyze it without the aid of computer resources. Domo, a cloud software company, issued a report estimating that there were 2.5 quintillion bytes of data are created every single day (DOMO, n.d.). The teaming of humans and machines to process information has proven to be the decisive factor with which the United States maintains its global technological advantage. Furthermore, storage requirements for that data are increasing at an exponential rate.

Computer automation is central and fundamental to life in the 21st century. However, the complexity of the modern digital world necessitates that humans remain in relative degrees of control over decisions made by machines. The methods that comprise the field of Visual Analytics methods allow decision-makers to combine their experience, creative abilities, and ability to adapt to changing situations in concert with modern machines to make sense of the complex modern world (Keim et al., n.d., pp. 1–2). Thus, Visual Analytics strives to ensure that information received is clear, engaging, and easily absorbed to allow those decision-makers to make the best decision in real-time. Figure 3 concisely describes Visual Analytics in a three-node visual.



Keim et al. (n.d.)

These areas are completed fields of study in themselves and have overlapping areas that all tangentially serve the conversation at hand. Simply though, if researchers extract valuable information from raw data by automatic processes, seek to meaningfully display those data, and interpret them responsibly through human reasoning and creativity, then one is conducting Visual Analytics (Keim et al., n.d.).

3. Social Network Analysis

The field of social network analysis is germane to Visual Analytics. Cunningham et al. states "Social network analysis (SNA) is a collection of theories and techniques to understand social structure." (Cunningham et al., 2016, p. 6). A social network consists of two primary elements, the entities within a social network and their relationships. The entities can be people, their online user accounts, organizations, businesses, countries, or the like. Those relationships can be based on certain roles, derived from similar behaviors, or describe interactions between entities (D. Cunningham, PowerPoint Slides, August 12, 2020). Any basis of relationship between entities in a social network is acceptable. Network entities are also commonly referred to as actors, nodes, or vertices, and the relationships as ties or edges (D. Cunningham, PowerPoint Slides, August 12, 2020). This thesis will utilize the terms "vertices" and "edges." A visual depiction of all vertices and edges is a social graph (Robins, 2015, pp. 3–4).

To gain a deeper understanding of a network, there are two other concepts that can be utilized to describe it, graph density and degree. The density of a network is a measure of how wholistically connected the network is. Between any two vertices there can only be one edge. The density is usually given a number between 0 and 1. A network that has no edges present would be a density=0, whereas a network with density=1 contains all possible edges (Robins, 2015, p. 7).

The degree of a vertex on a network is the number of connections to other vertices, measured by edge count. This will form the basis of influence as used in this thesis, without specific regard to the more defining network characteristics of average degree, or in-degree or out-degree (Robins, 2015, p. 7).

E. CHALLENGES WITHIN THE MARINE CORPS

1. 21st Century Competition

General Berger stated in his article "The Case for Change: Meeting the principal challenges facing the Corps" that:

[I]n light of the unrelenting increases in the reach, effectiveness, and lethality of modern weapons, the rise of revisionist powers with the

technical acumen and economic heft to integrate those weapons and other technologies for direct or indirect confrontation with the United States, and the persistence of rogue regimes possessing enough of those attributes to threaten U.S. interests, I am convinced that the defining attributes of our current force are no longer what the Nation requires of the Marine Corps." (Berger, 2020b, p. 8)

2. The Necessity to Dominate the Information Domain

General Berger also stated that a military challenge emerges in light of our global competitors:

The threat today accepts the (present) reality of U.S. conventional force superiority, and he has an answer for it in the form of the complex of aggressive behaviors 'short of war' that we have come to characterize as gray zone operations. Credible 'lethality' is only a part of the answer to this challenge—the ability to compete directly, daily, and globally, by means acceptable to the American people and the rule of law, is the missing piece. (Berger, 2020b, p. 8)

Considering Marine Corps Force Design efforts focused on building the Fleet Marine Force (FMF), fully integrated with the naval partners, the quote above illustrates two primary elements: (1) credible lethality, and (2) direct, daily, global competition. Both elements depend upon the success of institutionalizing the newest warfighting function information. Concerning credible lethality, competitors and adversaries are developing capabilities to disrupt the data and underlying networks of information upon which combat power projection depends (USMC, 2020). With respect to direct, global competition, competitors and adversaries are rapidly expanding their arsenal of information capabilities and employing them broadly, ranging from classic propaganda, influence, and disinformation operations to manipulating and degrading algorithmic-based decisionmaking (USMC, 2020).

F. MARINE CORPS INFORMATION OPERATIONS

1. ICC Composition and Functions

The ICC is the MIG commander's command and control center for OIE (USMC, 2020). It exists to support the MIG, and ultimately the MEF commanders' decision making

by providing a comprehensive understanding of threats, vulnerabilities, and opportunities in the IE by ensuring the implementation of the commander's decisions and intent; and by providing essential feedback of MEF OIE (USMC, 2020). The ICC provides a physical location where the MIG commander may exercise command over assigned units, adjust command action based on feedback, or coordinate with MEF CE staff elements planning and advising OIE. Its structure is a flexible and scalable grouping of interlinked functional cells supporting OIE planning, execution, and assessment. The cells are manned by functional experts who are organic to the MIG, or who augment it. Cells support the operation of the ICC watch floor to assist in near real-time OIE coordination and deconfliction. Depending upon mission requirements the ICC can grow, divide, or flex to meet the demands of the specific situation. Creating this flexible structure is an area of discovery that should be a primary focus of Force Design 2030 analysis and wargaming (Berger, 2020). A smartly designed Marine force is necessary to ensure OIE can be sufficiently planned coordinated across multiple nodes of the MLR or other Marine units conducting DMO and EABO missions. The ICC is persistently engaged in support of naval and Joint operations. A notional watch floor at the MIG is shown in Figure 4.


Figure 4. Notional MIG ICC Watch Floor. Source: Information Command Center Concept of Employment (2020)

2. Software / Systems

In pursuit of the MIG commander's information objectives, the ICC utilizes many software systems. Including, but not limited to the following: Scraawl, Microsoft Power BI, Pulse, Open IO, Talk-Walker, Meltwater, Palantir, C2IE, Web-ISSA, and FadeMist. Each portion of the ICC utilizes a different software suite or combination of software systems in pursuit of the tasks to meet the MIG commander's / IC intent. This research project solely utilizes Scraawl, a robust suite of tools to provide social, video, and text analytics. Within the Scraawl suite, this project simulates information received by the ICC cells through embedded reporting.

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

III. METHODOLOGY

A. INFLUENCE CELL

In answering the research questions (In what specific ways can information flow at the Marine Expeditionary Force Information Group (MIG) be enhanced? And How can information pertinent to OIE be communicated more effectively?)we will start working with a notional, unclassified scenario involving the Influence Cell of the MIGThed scenario that will be analyzed is analogous to the current involvement of the U.S. military in Oceania. I will analyze countering fictional Country of Red (CoR) influence on the countries in the fake Great Sea Region (GSR) Oceania, leveraging the Influence Cell. The Influence Cell description and tasks are below.

From the ICC Concept of Employment (CoE): "The influence cell is focused on leveraging information to affect the perceptions, attitudes, and other drivers of relevant actor behavior (USMC, 2020). The Influence Cell is the MIG's primary entity focused on influencing target foreign audience in support of friendly operations (USMC, 2020). The purpose of influence operations is to shape perceptions (JCS, 2018, p. viii). The IE capabilities most often associated with influence include but are not limited to psychological operations (PSYOP), CA, OPSEC, SIGMAN, MILDEC, and STO (USMC, 2020). Fires and maneuver may also be considered by this cell for creating an influence effect. This cell is primarily responsible for understanding and developing options for OIE and for leveraging operations and activities to impact the IE. The influence cell's tasks include the following:

- Coordinate influence operations with the MEF staff and naval mission partners to support global campaigning and naval operations.
- Support the development of Annex G (Civil Military Operations (CMO)).
- Coordinate and de-conflict themes and message dissemination.
- Support the development of the protected target list.

- Support MILDEC, SIGMAN and OPSEC.
- Support MEF operational assessments.

As can be seen from the description, the influence cell is primarily concerned with the perceptions, attitudes, and drivers of behavior for relevant actors and populations. The internet, combined with the rise of social media over the last two decades, people easily connect across the globe with others with whom they would have not previously ever met. These connections, while a necessary human desire, have enabled influence to spread across all borders and groups. The powerful suite of analytics tools in Scraawl makes it a natural tool for exploiting social data through qualitative and quantitative analysis.

As with many of the other cells, the Influence Cell's doctrinal tasking lacked specificity. This lack of specificity was attributed restrictions based on one of two things: classification considerations and the fact that the source document (ICC COE) is listed as only a "concept" of employment, rather than doctrine. In addition, the kinds of information that some of the ICC cells discover cannot be accurately replicated without the use of many of the software / systems mentioned previously. Software utilized by the MIG was created by various contractors who, because of proprietary concerns, do not always create their software for integration (Rendon et al., 2019). The case study at hand will also be analyzed with a bias towards what can be found open-source / unclassified (e.g., through the Scraawl suite).

B. SCRAAWL

Scraawl is a data analytics tools suite created by Intelligent Automation, Inc(Intelligent Automation, Inc., n.d.). The suite contains four primary modules which give Scraawl the ability to analyze publicly available data, pictures, video, and unstructured data. They are SocL ("social"), PixL ("pixel"), Txt ("text"), and TrndZ ("trends")(Intelligent Automation, Inc., 2020b). Each tool allows for a different type and depth of data analysis. Scraawl SocL is a performance and analytics intelligence tool that searches, analyzes, and visualizes online conversations and news data. Scraawl PixL is a powerful tool for processing and analyzing image and video data. Scraawl Txt facilitates the discovery of patterns and trends in unstructured text. Scraawl TrndZ creates "monitors" to collect data that cross-matches usernames, hashtags, and keywords for indexing, searching, stream processing, and visualization of posts. This project will primarily utilize the SocL module.

Scraawl SocL has specific criteria with which to use to effectively search and obtain relevant information. Within Scraawl SocL, four searches are available and utilized based on specific keywords and Boolean logic entered by the user. The four searches are Multi-feed Search, Premium Search, Premium Advanced Search, and Account Monitoring (Intelligent Automation, Inc., 2019). Multi-feed Search and Premium Search can be used for keywords and only up to ten keywords. Premium Searches require selection of a primary data source (Twitter, Instagram, Facebook, Tumblr, YouTube, VK, Sina Weibo, or other performance analytics and intelligence [PAI] sources). This project will leverage Twitter data only. Premium Advanced Search allows for full Boolean expressions, but limits searches to Twitter or other PAI sources. Account Monitoring is a way to collect posts from specific Facebook, Tumblr, or Twitter accounts.

Multi-feed Search and Account Monitoring will utilized. Within Multi-feed, search terms included permutations of "US," "DOD," "PRC," "PLA," and five specific countries in Oceania. Four of the countries (Australia, New Zealand, Papua New Guinea, Fiji) led Oceania as those with the highest gross domestic product (GDP) for purchasing power parity (PPP), according to a 2017 Central Intelligence Agency report. The fifth country, Palau, was chosen for the intimate partnership with the United States (Office of Insular Affairs, 2015).

Account Monitoring searches will comprise primary U.S. and Chinese defense accounts, and their interactions discovered through Scraawl with relevant defense accounts of their Oceanic counterparts. The defense accounts used in the Account Monitoring Searches are annotated in Table 2.

United States Defense Accounts	Chinese Defense Accounts	Oceanic Defense Accounts
@USPacificFleet	@SinoDefence	Regional
<i>a</i> thejointstaff	@zlj517	@IPDefenseForum
@INDOPACOM	@sonoftaiwan	WIONews
@PacificMarines	_	@Japan_pac
@Global_Mil_Info		
		Australia
		@CDF_Aust
		@DeptDefence
		@CN_Australia
		<u>Fiji</u>
		@Rfmf_Media
		Papua New Guinea
		@ADFinPNG
		@CDF_PNGDF
		New Zealand
		@NZDefenceForce
		@CDF_NZ

Table 2.Scraawl SocL Search Accounts

1. Communities of Interest

In discovering the sources and impacts of influence in social networks, it is helpful to analyze how people organize themselves. Through meaningful data interpreted responsibly, it can be shown where the sources of influence are and their impacts. Depending largely on the social network in question and the keywords used, the amount of information received back can be staggering and the analyst can be left with hundreds of thousands or even millions of posts, tweets, links to news stories, and users to sift through. Social media analytics tools aid in the "sifting" through large volumes of data to focus interests into relevant information, and then derive actionable insights from those data.

Scraawl SocL has an advanced analytics tool called "Community Detection" which allows users to search keywords and interpret the meaning out of the results The techniques for community detection are based around several algorithms that utilize hierarchical clustering, clique-based methods, statistical inference modularity maximization, and label propagation (Intelligent Automation, Inc., 2020a). Figure 5 is an example of one such result from a search for influential Twitter accounts concerned with the Oceanic region. Through Community Detection, Scraawl provides the size of the community, number of subcommunities, sizes of each of the subcommunities, and (upon inspection of the subcommunities) users/links within each.

Community Detection Sources: 🕊 · Folder: Account Monitoring Reports · Report name: Other_Pac_Tw_Accts · Accounts: (from:sonoftaiwan OR @sonoftaiwan) OR (from:USPacificFleet OR @USPacificFleet) OR (from:thejointstaff) OR (thejointstaff) OR (from:INDOPACOM OR (INDOPACOM) OR (from:WIONews OR (WIONews) OR (from:PacificMarines) OR (from:Japan_pac OR @Japan_pac) OR (from:CN_Australia OR @CN_Australia) OR (from:Global_Mil_Info OR @Global_Mil_Info) Basic Statistics / R Advanced Analytics Status: Completed · Posts: 24,179 · Updated: 9 Mar, 2021 23:40 Timeline: 2 Mar. 2021 00:00 - 9 Mar. 2021 23:31 > Rerun analytics Scraawl Community Detection uses a graph-theoretic approach to partition the social interaction graph into communities. Scraawl provides community detection statistics including number of communities, average and maximum community sizes. Details of the top 10 communities and the most connected users/hashtags in these communities are shown **Community Detection Results** Visualization of Communities Average Community Size 237 Maximum Community Size 7 0 7 2 Number Of Communities 74 @thejointst @palkisu # Translate Communities Rank Community Label Community Size 1 @wionews #gravitas @pfizer 7072 2 @indopacom @uspacificfleet #freeandopenindopacific 2171 3 @narendramodi @republic @pmoindia 1652 @nayau. @wionews #gravitas @pfize @thejointstaff @deptofdefense #genmilley 1525 5 @palkisu #gravitasplus #bokoharam 1346 #myanmar @sonoftaiwan #india 1019 6 @nayaung61146884 @potus #whatshappeninginmyanmar 554 @global_mil_info @allinon05140909 @michaeldematteo 288 8 9 #iwd2021 @japan_pac #jpac 213 10 @mynation_net @srirudybaba @no1_mra 197

Figure 5. Scraawl Community Detection Image. Source: Scraawl (2021)

2. Influence Discovery and Influence Analytics

Members within communities tend to influence one another to different degrees, in different ways, and at different times. Furthermore, all members are not equally skilled in their abilities to influence one another. Therefore, after rigorous analysis and given enough time, those members who do possess influence should naturally stand out(Singer, 2018, p. 169). Rightly so, study of influence in digital/social media has generated much debate in the two previous decades. Just as companies are looking to spread their influence and reach

a broader audience to increase their influence and profits, the DOD (and the Marine Corps as a result) seeks to understand the connections and influences between the populations of allies and competitors across the globe. The DIME-levers of national power are all subject to the influence of human interactions and thus are all of interest to the current research project.

Furthermore, the preeminent task for the information practitioner is the identification of key influencers, agents that can leverage and be accurate measures for a target population. A thorough study of these influencers also give insight into why and how members in a target population might respond to certain messaging or information campaign. It is then considered to be actionable military information power.

While simple in concept, the challenge is implied: correctly identifying influencers matters.

Scraawl SocL provides two other advanced analytical reports: Influence Discovery and Influence Analytics. These two reports give specific feedback for influence in a community of interest based on a set of input keywords or phrases. This allows the analyst to answer some basic questions:

- What does influence in social networks mean?
- Does "follower" count or reach imply that a user is influential?
- Does being mentioned multiple times (by various other users) in a conversation thread imply influence? What about retweets?
- Is there a correlation between influence and frequency of posts/tweets?

Specific keyword searches will be utilized to measure the movement of influence in communities. The observation of significant influence in communities will be analyzed. Measures of performance (MOP) will be numbers of: retweets in a community, likes, follows, hashtags, and mentions. Measures of effectiveness (MOE) are users generating influence in their communities in the time window searched. Measures of effectiveness indicators (MOEI) will not be considered due to the short time window (seven days) that most of the data was generated.

The captured data from the keyword searches will be analyzed for trends that will feed the fictional geographic region mimicking Oceania. According to the algorithmically significant information presented in Scraawl, I will categorize and rank it. Strong MOP/ MOE will be ranked as more significant according to the CARVER analysis and this produce better information with which to generate a running estimate. The use of the extensive visualizations within these reports will constitute effective use of tools of visual analytics. Examples of Influence Discovery and Influence Analytics are Figures 6 and 7.

	Infl	uence Discovery	
OR (from:thejointstaff OR @th	cjointstaff) OR (from:INDOPACOM OR @INI		ofteiwan) OR (from:USPacificFleet OR @USPacificFleet) OR (from:PacificMarines OR @PacificMarines) OR LInfo OR @GlobaLMILInfo)
🔟 Basic Statistics / 👘 Advanced	Analytics		
Status: Completed - Posts: 24,179 -	Updated: 9 Mar, 2021 23:40	Timeline: 2 Mar, 2021 00:00	9 Mar, 2021 23:31 ► Rerun analytics O Actions -
	shtags and impact ratios, which represent	to ores that represent the influence of users and I the relative importance of the contributions of ne ranslate Top Influential Hashtag	· ·
User		Score Hashtag	Score
@wianaws	100	∂gravitas	30.6
(opalkisu	14.2	∉gravitasplus	9.3
@indopacom	77	≢myanmar	\$7
@global mil info	4.1	#freeandopenindopacific	3.6
@uspacificfleet	a	#bokoharam	27
@thejointstaff	2.3	#sasc	22
@dimi	2.2	#usnavy	21
@plizer	1.7	#internationalwomensday	3.4
@usnavy	1.4	∂todayinhistory	1.2
(0swati_gs	1.4	#iwd2021	1.2

Figure 6.

Influence Discovery Graphic. Source: Scraawl (2021)

Influence Analytics – '@joaquimcampa'



Figure 7. Influence Analytics Graphic Source: Scraawl (2021)

The keyword searches within Scraawl provide the realistic information with which to attribute to the notional strategic scenario. The information received contained actual Twitter profiles, pictures, and other potential PII in the aggregate. However, only the relationships and information that leads to reasonable assumptions of influence in communities was of interest in the project; specific identifiable information and locations of people and organizations was not. The keyword searches are shown in Table 3.

Scraawl Module	Search Type	Keywords
SocL	Multi-feed Search	((dod australia) OR (dod fiji) OR (dod new zealand) OR (dod papua new guinea) OR (dod palau))
SocL	Multi-feed Search	((prc australia) OR (prc new zealand) OR (prc fiji) OR (prc palau) OR (prc papua new guinea))
SocL	Multi-feed Search	((pla australia) OR (pla new zealand) OR (pla fiji) OR (pla papua new guinea) OR (pla palau))
SocL	Multi-feed Search	((us military australia) OR (us military fiji) OR (us military new zealand) OR (us military papua new guinea) OR (us military palau))
SocL	Account Monitoring	 @USPacificFleet @thejointstaff @INDOPACOM @PacificMarines @Global_Mil_Info @sonoftaiwan @WIONews @Japan_pac @CN_Australia @SinoDefence @zlj517 @CDF_Aust @DeptDefence @Rfmf_Media @ADFinPNG @CDF_PNGDF @IPDefenceForce @CDF_NZ

Table 3.Scraawl Keyword Searches

3. CARVER Metrics

Tables 2 through 9 outlines the metrics that information discovered through Influence Discovery will be evaluated into a CARVER Matrix.

Critical Value	Scale
Information discovery would significantly impact unit mission or	5
commander's priorities	
Information discovery would considerably impact unit mission or	4
commander's priorities	
Information discovery would impact unit mission or commander's priorities	3
Information discovery might impact unit mission or commander's priorities	2
Information discovery would not affect mission performance	1

Table 5.Accessibility Values

Accessible Value		
Information freely accessible. No additional interpretation or analysis	5	
needed to access.		
Information easily accessible without significant effort, analysis, or	4	
interpretation.		
Information not clearly available but accessible through deduction of		
available data.		
Information not clearly available except through significant effort, analysis,		
or interpretation of combined or associated data.		
Information unavailable/accessible, or unavailable/accessible except through		
nonstandard analytical techniques.		

Table 6.Recoverability Values

Recoverability Value		
Information clearly attributable, undeniable, and accountable	5	
Information easily attributable, undeniable, and accountable with little effort	4	
Information somewhat attributable, undeniable, and accountable with significant effort	3	
Information not easily attributed, can be denied, and potentially accountable	2	
Information not attributable, deniable, and unaccountable with ease	1	

Table 7.Vulnerability Values

Vulnerability Value			
Target populations easily influenced with no effort	5		
Target populations easily influenced with little effort			
Target populations may be influenced with effort			
Target populations unlikely influenced with effort			
Target populations not susceptible to influence or unresponsive to efforts			

Effect Value		
Very high effects of the influence information on a nation's politics,		
operations, populace, economy, or media.		
High influence effects on a nation.	4	
Moderate influence effects on a nation.	3	
Little Influence effects on a nation.		
No influence effects on a nation.		

Table 8.Effect Values

Table 9.Recognizability Values

Recognizability Value			
Target population easily recognizable by all with no confusion.	5		
Target population easily recognizable by most	4		
Target population recognizable with some training			
Target population difficult to recognize; probable confusion			
Target population extremely difficult to recognize; unrecognizable susceptibility			

C. OPERATIONAL VIGNETTE CASE STUDY

1. Strategic and Operational Context

It is 15 JUL 2030 and since 2024 United States naval forces have been securing the nation's interest by countering competitor nation interests and bolstering coalition partners in the Great Sea Region (GSR). Within the GSR, the country of Red is the United States' main rival, while the countries of Blue and Green are friendly, and Yellow remaining neutral. Beginning in the early 2000s, the authoritarian regime of Red has pursued a gradual, regional and global strategy of coercion, ambiguity, and public persuasion to assert territorial claims over the GSR to slowly degrade Western influence from turning Yellow sympathetic to the ideology of the United States. The Red Government sees the U.S. as a threat to its way of life as a faction of the population in Red is now calling for an end to one-party authoritarian rule and hold the country's first democratic elections. The United States, as well as other developed democratic nations continue to pressure Red towards that end and are leveraging partnerships with Green and Blue in the GSR to accomplish this. Red asserted claims throughout the region through various tactics—such as land reclamation, island militarization, and by pursuing legal arrangements and diplomatic

pressure—without triggering military conflict in the region. Green, Blue, and Yellow are historical allies of the United States and have also asserted territorial claims in the GSR (Figure 8).



Figure 8. Great Sea Region

It is within the United States' national interest to prevent Red, a historically competitive and adversarial nation, from enforcing its claims in the GSR. Assuring this strategic waterway remains free and open is crucial for global economic stability and for upholding freedom of navigation. However, upon recommendation from regional experts, senior civilian and military leaders decide on a non-military course of action. Red's ability to control key choke points in the GSR would spell strategic failure for the United States as it would result in a significant reordering in the region's balance of power. U.S. Officials see democratically-appointed military leaders as the key to strategic wins in the GSR. It is thus decided that diplomacy and a systematic influence campaign will commence. Preventing Red from controlling the GSR has been a primary objective of the United States since 2014 and is the reason the GSR remains a vital area for U.S. military presence in 2030.

2. Situation

Red asserts vast swaths of the GSR to be an indisputable part of its territory. Although Red has been cautious in asserting sovereignty, the highest tension has been between Red and Green over the last 10 years (USMC, 2020). Red sees the biggest threat to achieving its destiny as failing to achieve strong national unity. To achieve this, Red enforces an aggressive policy of controlling information within its borders and protesting foreign narratives that run counter to its state-provided messages. Red views the United States' presence in the GSR as a threat to how its citizens view the legitimacy of the authoritarian regime and its ability to expand Red's influence in the region and globally (USMC, 2020). As a result, there are indications Red may increase pressure in the GSR and assert firm control over its claims to threaten freedom of navigation throughout the region (USMC, 2020).

Of late, there has also been a strong societal shift towards individual rights and social liberties in Red. It is historically suppressed women's right to vote, driving, involvement in politics, government, and other areas of societal influence. Brought about by international pressure and influence from the United States and other nations, large protest groups are organizing into a movement where thousands of women and demonstrators are planning marches and protests against the authoritarian Red regime.

a. Adversary (Red) Situation

Red has used the ESG's presence to promote the narrative of American imperialism and has accused the United States of meddling in Red's internal affairs by aiding Green and Blue to counter Red's assertion over its "sovereign territory" in the GSR (USMC, 2020). Since the ESG was established in 2024 Red has:

• Conducted "public opinion warfare" through an aggressive propaganda and disinformation campaign to discredit the Task Groups' presence in Green and the GSR. Targets of this campaign include: U.S. political leaders (national, state, and local), the U.S. population writ large, and U.S. Navy, Marine Corps, and Coast Guard leaders, ESG units operating in Green and Blue, as well as leaders and people in Green, Blue, and Yellow (USMC, 2020).

- Militarized numerous islands in the disputed areas of the GSR and conducted aggressive naval patrolling and joint exercises from these islands to demonstrate competency in controlling the sea lanes of communication through the GSR.
- Used its "shadow militia"—a secret government force to conduct surveillance, collect intelligence, and enforce Red's claims of sovereignty and status quo against the women's movement through intimidation in the most liberal and populous areas of the GSR.
- Conducted civil infrastructure projects in Blue to create a wedge between Blue and Green.

IV. RESULTS AND ANALYSIS

A. RESULTS FROM KEYWORD SEARCHES

The following six sections outline prominent information extracted from the data retrieved from the Scraawl keyword searches. Analysis of this data will facilitate population of the final CARVER Matrix for the operational vignette case study, adhering to the metrics from Tables 4 through 9. The Basic Statistics for Keyword Search 1 are captured in Figure 9.

1. Keyword Search 1: ((dod australia) OR (dod fiji) OR (dod new zealand) OR (dod papua new guinea) OR (dod palau))

a. Basic Statistics

Basic Statistics				¥ 25	0 t 0	D 50 W 19	🔂 🕕 🗠 73
itatus: Completed · Posts: 25 · U	pdated: 9	Mar, 2021 12:58		т	imeline: 3 Mar, 202	1 17:10 – 9 Mar, 2021 10:	09 Actions -
lop Users		Top Words	- II	Top Hashtags		Top Mentions	l.,
aethylred	1	Payloads	26	#chemicalweapons	1	@planet4589	
askokeeffe	1	Dod	21	#adf	1	@lindseywford	
bobsta14	1	Zealand	14	#newzealand	1	@cold_peace_	
ehowd0103	1	Shouldn	13	#munitions	1	@giorgiameloni	
)chris77ve	1	Legality	13	#dod	1	@minecraft_raper	
25 total users Det	ails 🔪	127 total words	Details 🗲	8 total hashtags	Details >	14 total mentions	Details
op URLs		Top Retweets		Top Languages		Top Geo Locatio	o
ttps://www.contactairlanda	1	RT @planet4589 Interesting t	12		 English Italian 	New Zealand	
ltp://ASPI.org	1	RT @Cold_Peace_ Incoming	3			Australia	
tps://twitter.com/aaronjma	1	RT @24Mattino .@GiorgiaMel	1	1		Japan	
ttps://www.aspi.org.au/abo	1	RT @Acorok #DOD heroes: A	1	96%		China	
ttps://twitter.com/TheSpino	1					Germany	
total URLs Det	ails 🔪	4 retweeted tweets	Details >	2 total languages	Details >	30 total locations	View Map

Basic Statistics

Figure 9. Keyword Search 1: Basic Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)

The results from the Multi-feed generated 25 matching posts over a seven day period. There were no users that showed prominence over the others for these keywords. However, user @planet4589 was mentioned in three times as many posts than the next referenced user. In addition, this same user was retweeted many times in the search, with half of all tweets (14 out of 28) as geo-referenced to New Zealand. Word statistics showed the word "payload" (26 times used out of 127 words) as the most used word, followed by "DOD" (21 times used) and "Zealand" (14 times used).

b. Mention Statistics

Indicated in Figure 10 are Mention Statistics, annotating total mentions, percent of total mentions, percent of total posts, and recent posts that involve user @planet4589. From this search, and related to the keywords, the mention statistics indicate that 40% of all mentions involved @planet4589. This is a significant portion of engagement from the community specifically referencing @planet4589. This suggests a high measure of influence.

SocL + New Report + My Reports & My Profile	Lill Bas	ic Statistics 📦 Advanced Analytics ▾ 🛢 Raw Data 🛛 🥹 Help 🗘 Logou			
Mentic	on Statistics – '	'@planet4589'			
		0R (dod new zealand) OR (dod papua new guinea) OR (dod palau))			
Basic Statistics / @ Mention Statistics / @planet4589		25 0 0 t 0 5 w 19 6 0 4 73			
Status: Completed · Posts: 25 · Updated: 9 Mar, 2021 12:58		Timeline: 3 Mar, 2021 17:10 – 9 Mar, 2021 10:09 • Actions •			
User Profile	3월 Translate R	ecent Posts – '@planet4589' 🔋 Translate 🗾 View A			
0planet4589	-	13th level Wizard @Aethylred · 20h · Raw Data			
Summary – '@planet4589'	-	RT @planet4589 Interesting take on the legality of RocketLab launching certain US military payloads from New Zealand. Seems true that NZ govt			
Count	12	shouldn't just have to trust DoD's assurance that payloads are not part of nuclear command and control. https://l.co/XyDb5Gc0Ho			
6 of mentions	40.0%	+ 13 ♥			
Post count	12	Patrick O'Keeffe @AskOKeeffe · 1d · Raw Data RT @planet4589 Interesting take on the legality of RocketLab launching			
5 of posts	48.0%	certain US military payloads from New Zealand. Seems true that NZ govt shouldn't just have to trust DoD's assurance that payloads are not part of nuclear			
Jser count	12	command and control. https://t.co/XyDb5Gc0Ho			
% of users	48.0%	· 1 869 10 9			
		Aaron Pickard @NotCaptPicard · 1d · Raw Data RT @planet4589 Interesting take on the legality of RocketLab launching			
Top Users – '@planet4589'	🕅 Translate	certain US military payloads from New Zealand. Seems true that NZ govt shouldn't just have to trust DoD's assurance that payloads are not part of nuclear			
Jsername	Mention Count	command and control. https://t.co/XyDb5Gc0Ho			
Donald F. Robertson @DonaldFR • San Francisco, CA Traveler down the long road to spacefaring civilizations. Professional writer, musician, dancer, and a decidedly non-professional flying trapeze artist.	1	Kevin A Bauer @KB32ScienceGuy · 1d · Raw Data RT @planet4589 Interesting take on the legality of RocketLab launching certain US military payloads from New Zealand. Seems true that NZ govt			
View Auckland @ViewAuckland - Auckland View Auckland delivers high quality content celebrating local businesses and provides people visiting our great city with fun things to do.	1	shouldn't just have to trust DoD's assurance that payloads are not part of nuclear command and control. https://t.co/XyDb5GcOHo			
Patrick O'Keeffe @AskOKeeffe #Aerospace x #Maritime x #Cyber #Security #Policy & #Technology (@AMCSolutionsGrp @ISPK_org #Pilot Former #Navy Officer	1	shockingguy @shockingguy - 1d - Raw Data RT @planet4569 Interesting take on the legality of RocketLab launching certain US military payloads from New Zealand. Seems true that NZ gov! shouldn't just have to trust DoD's assurance that payloads are not part of nuclear command and control. https://t.co/XyDb5GcOHo			
Aaron Pickard @NotCaptPicard - SoCal Assembly/Integration/Test for small satellites; @Columbia65./JTS (2020) & @mattellowship (2019); opinions my own; RT ≠ endorsement	1	Donald F. Robertson @DonaldFR - 1d - Raw Data RT @planet4589 Interesting take on the legality of RocketLab launching certain US military payloads from New Zealand. Seems true that NZ gov1 should/nt just have to rust DO2's assume that payloads are not part of nuclear			
13th level Wizard @Aethylred · Palmerston North, or Foxton.	1	command and control. https://t.co/XyDb5GcOHo			

Figure 10. Keyword Search 1: Mention Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)

c. Retweet Statistics

Like the above discussions, retweets indicate affirmation of communications, and are a useful metric of influence. In addition, the tweet from @planet4589 that references the Rocket Lab news story demonstrates skepticism at the DOD's motives for the Rocket Lab launches and could be viewed as a more progressive viewpoint (Figure 11).

State + New Report # My Reports & My Profile	asic Statistics	🗑 Advanced An	alytics 👻 🛔	🛢 Raw Data	🛛 Help	🕩 Logout
Retweet St	atistics					
Sources: У · Folder: Search Reports · Search terms: ((dod australia) OR (dod f	iji) OR (dod <mark>n</mark> ew z	ealand) OR (dod	papua new g	juinea) OR (do	d palau))	
Lad Basic Statistics / 13 Retweet Statistics	2	25 00	to t	50 V K	19 🙃 🕕) 🛆 73
Status: Completed - Posts: 25 - Updated: 9 Mar, 2021 12:58		Timeline: 3	3 Mar, 2021 1.	7:10 – 9 Mar, 2	2021 10:09	🕏 Actions 👻
Top 50 Retweet Statistics					(🕲 Translate
«First <prev 1="" next="" page:=""> Last»</prev>			Sear	rch	٩	Clear
TFilter					🖨 Exc	lude selected
Tweet	Retweet count -	% of retweets \$	Post count \$	% of posts \$	User count 🗢	% of users ≑
RT @planet4589 Interesting take on the legality of RocketLab launching certain US military payloads from New Zealand. Seems true that NZ govt shouldn't just have to trust DoD's assurance that payloads are not part of nuclear command and control. https://t.co/XyDb5GcOHo	12	70.6%	12	48.0%	12	48.0%
RT @Cold_Peace_ Incoming DASD @lindseywford: "[DoD] could take further steps to more explicitly coordinate force presence with allies and partners including Japan, Australia, the UK, France, and even India, to maintain a higher tempo of like-minded surface operations." https://t.co/B/TT1CjIH2k	3	17.6%	3	12.0%	3	12.0%
RT @24Mattino .@GiorgiaMeloni, presidente #Fdi: blocco dosi #astrazeneca per Australia 'è una mossa che condivido, ma qualcosa non ha funzionato nella vicenda vaccini gestita dall'Europa, avremmo preferito evitare arrivare al 'si salvi chi può"	1	5.9%	1	4.0%	1	4.0%
RT @Acorok #DOD heroes: America's downloaded & UK reviewed most. Germany, France, Canada, Australia, S. Africa & Brazil are allies too. What about you?	1	5.9%	1	4.0%	1	4.0%

Figure 11. Keyword Search 1: Retweet Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)

d. Locations

it:

Each post potentially has three different types of geographic data associated with

- A "geo-code" if there's a latitude / longitude associated in the post (from a check-in or use of other location services);
- A "geo-profile" from the location in the user's profile; and / or
- A "geo-reference" any geographic location mentioned in the user's post

Each type of data can tell a different story about the collected data. Furthermore, a post can appear on the map multiple times depending on the geo data it includes. The location data included below comprises geo-referenced data only. From the Scraawl SocL subsection "Locations" that overlays tweet data on a map, it is seen that zero posts were geo-coded, 30 geo-referenced, and zero geo-profiled (Figure 12).



Figure 12. Geographic Tweet Data Organized by Data Type. Source. Scraawl (2021)

e. Influence Discovery

The Influence Discovery leverages ranking to provide a visual of a user's influence ranking in a specific community based on the keywords used in the search. User @planet4589 ranked 100% on the influence scale for this search topic (Figure 13).

Sociation + New Report # My Repo	orts 🔺 My Profile	Lill Basic S	tatistics 🕞 Adv	anced Analytics 👻	🛢 Raw Data		re screen sharing (+ Logout
	Infl	uence Disco	overy				
Sources: 9 - Folder: Search Re	ports · Search terms: ((dod au	stralia) OR (dod fiji) OR	(dod new zealand) OR (dod papua ne	w guinea) OR (do	d palau))	
📶 Basic Statistics / 🕡 Advanced Analytics			¥ 25	00 t0	E 50 VK	19 🗘 🛛	On 73
Status: Completed - Posts: 25 - Updated: 9 Mar,	2021 12:58	Ti	neline: 3 Mar, 202	1 17:10 – 9 Mar, 201	21 10:09 🕨 Ren	in analytics	🌣 Actions 👻
Scraawl Influence Discovery uses a ranking appr the top 10 most influential users/hashtags and i user/hashtag, are shown.							
Top Influential Users	₿Å T	ranslate Top	Influential Ha	shtags			🖄 Translate
User		Score Hashta	9				Score
@planet4589	100	#adf			9.2		
@lindseywford	25	#muni	lions		9.2		
@cold_peace_ 1	7.1	#chen	icalweapons		9.2		
@popebear 13	a	#aust	alla		9.2		
@acorok 9.2	2	#dod			9.2		
@kasek_15 74	9	#fdi			7.2		
@minecraft_raper 7.	9	#astra	zeneca		7.2		
@punjabimarxist 7.	9	#news	ealand		6.8		
@24mattino 7.	2						
@giorgiameloni 73	2						

Figure 13. Keyword Search 1: Influence Discovery. Source: Scraawl (2021)

f. Community Metrics and Detection

The following two figures show user @planet4589's influence scores relating to his closest neighbors. Of note, user @planet4589 is directly linked to users @askokeeffe and @aethylred. These three users compose the biggest community for this keyword search. Community Detection visualization (Figure 15) social graph shows the relative community strength of each community when compared to the others. The largest community contains 13 members and carries the most influence among these circles. The average community within this search contains four members.

In generating these influence metrics, Scraawl computes all normalized scores for a community and ranks users by influence score (Intelligent Automation, Inc., 2020a). The influence score is computed directly from degree comparisons which allows for ranking of a user's connectedness, referencing the social network graph (Figures 14 and 15). User @planet4589 ranks highest for degree within his community (Figure 16), although there were several other smaller communities that were generated through this keyword search. Figures 17 and 18 provide enhanced analysis of user @planet4589's community influence.



Figure 14. Keyword Search 1: Comparative Influence Scores for user @planet4589. Source: Scraawl (2021)



Figure 15. Social graph for user @planet4589's social cluster. Source: Scraawl (2021)

Label	Demos
Label	Degree
@planet4589	12
@vickysung3	5
@dod_thesaint	4
@lindseywford	4
@cold_peace_	4
@proletariatris1	3
@davidsantoro1	2
@chowd0103	2
@industhink	2
@destinyofdragon	2





Figure 17.

Keyword Search 1: Community Detection Metrics and Visualization. Source: Scraawl (2021)

Community Analytics - '@planet4589 @aethylred @askokeeffe'

@planct4589 @a		ed Analytics / Domr ikokeette	nunity Detection		× 38	E 🕒	te	0 51	VK 19	08	<u>64</u> 0
tatus: Completed	Posts: 25 - U	Ipdated: 9 Mar, 2027 1	12:58						Timeline:	• •	Actions +
fsualization α αικι (ξι) ● haris		nmunity Membe	Doc ity	Numerica State	Saskok Brgguy geis@72ve geldt2re@roasguy grobs@rpleand						
nuelization shows t	the sociel inter		100 commanity case	e geological financial for the state of the	Lanked by the number						
op Users – 'Ø	ihe social linea 0planet450	89 @aethylre		nbers (uners and heatings	t anked by the number cent Posts – 'Ø	planet4	589 @a	ethyl			₩ View Al
unionion atoma t op Users – 'Ø	the sociel inter	89 @aethylre	102 commonity room Mendions in report	nbers (uners and heatings	t. andred by the months cont Posts - '@ 13th level Wiz If Gydanic 488	planet4 ard @Acths 9 Interestin	589 @a (red • 20h g take on	ethyl • Row Data the legality:)) Tr af Racketl al	anslate Islaunching	×
uellanton shows t op Users – 10 mane	the social integ 0planet.450 Posts in	89 @aethylre		nbers (uners and heatings	t, andred by the outside cent. Posts – 100 13th level Wiz htt gybens 450 struction () soit struction () soit	planet4 ard @Acthy 9 Interestin ory payloa: ave to final	589 @a (red - 20h g take on is from Nr DoD's aso	ethyl • Row Data the legality : w Zealand, crance that	Str of Rockettal Secms true paykools at	ensiate blaunching that N2 go	j vt
uelbeton shows t p Users – '@ mame lanet4589	ibe social inter Optamet 450 Posts in report	89 @aethylre Hashtags in report	Mentions in report	nbers (users and heatings Re Likes in report	t modest by the encode cent Posts - 100 13th level Wa cents / US mits	planet4 ard @Activ 9 to erestin cry payloas are to bool control, http	589 @a (red - 20h g take on is from Nr DoD's aso	ethyl • Row Data the legality : w Zealand, crance that	Secus true preykools a	ensiate blaunching that N2 go	j vt
uolootion shows o op Users – 100 marte lanet4589 Inia770+	ibe social inter Optamet 450 Posts in report	89 @aethylre Hashtags in report 0	Mentions in report	nbers (users and heatings Re Likes in report	tandad by the mecha tent Posts - 100 To genand Sin Small Digal security Samits Security Samits Security Samits Security Samits Security Samits Security Samits Security Samits Security Samits Security Samits Samit	planet4 and @Acthy 9 ho-media cry payloas ave to food control, http 3 *	589 @a (red - 20h g take on to trom No DoD's as ps://t.co/)	aethyl • Row Data The lepaity : w Zecland, warde that wob5%c018	Secus true preykools a	ensiate blaunching that N2 go	j vt
unkholise shows t op Users – 10 mame lanet4589 lois77% hockloggy	the social lines Pplanet45 Posts In report 1 1	89 @aethylre Hashtags in report 0 0	Mentions in report	nbers (users and heatings Re Likes in report	t anded by the number cent Posts - 100 13th level Wiz ortab US mit stratiful J and central US mit stratiful J and central value And And Patrick U Keet If Gydani 488 Patrick D Keet	planet4 and @Acchy 9 to enaction cry payload aver to those control, http 3	589 @a (red - 20h g take on to from Ni DoD's aso po//t.co/2 isoffe - 1 d g take on	• Rew Data the legality of w Zecland, arance thet y Observation • Rew Data the legality of)) Tr af Rochett at Secons true paykeeds at p af Rochett at	anslate Interneting that N2 per which per to billaunching	y vt of modea J
autoritai anova t p Users – '9 mame lanet4509 latet75% hocklinggy witylined	the social line. Pplanet45: Posts In report 1 1 1 1	89 @aethylre Hashtags in report 0 0 0 0	Mentions in report	nbers (users and heatings Re Likes in report	t anded by the success cent Posts - 100 18th level Wiz 011 (gebanded) social visit US mit social visit US mit social visit US 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	planet4 and @Acth 9 horeestin any payloas area to find control, http 3	589 @a (red - 20h g take on to from N(DoD's aso ps://t.co/) icoffe - 1d g take on to from N(DoD's aso	• Rew Data • Rew Data the legality : w Zealand, w Zealand, y Dbass of R • Rew Data the legality : w Zealand, curance that	af Backetta Seems true paykeets a o af Backetta Seems true paykeets a	In team of the section of the sectio	j VC of machen of machen J VC
unitization unional z pp Users – 100 imame lanet4589 Inia779e hockingsty echylned uskoKearte	the asciel http: Pplanet450 Posts In report 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	89 @aethylre Hashtags in report 0 0 0 0 0	Mentions in report	nbers (users and heatings Re Likes in report	Comber System contents Comp Posts - 100 To generation System Comp Comp System Comp Comp System Comp Comp System Comp	planet4 and @Activ 9 Interestin on payload are to fund control. http 8 Photenestin on y payload are to fund control. http	589 @a (red - 20h g take on to from N(DoD's aso ps://t.co/) icoffe - 1d g take on to from N(DoD's aso	• Rew Data • Rew Data the legality : w Zealand, w Zealand, y Dbass of R • Rew Data the legality : w Zealand, curance that	af Backetta Seems true paykeets a o af Backetta Seems true paykeets a	In team of the section of the sectio	j vt of moden of moden J vt
naktoritasi ahavsi a op Users – 15 smame slanet4589 disis 77% slahockingguy selvyleed kaktokaartia Jonaldi-K	the asciel http: Dplanet45t Posts in report 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	89 Graethylres. Hashtags in report 0 0 0 0 0 0	Mentions in report	nbers (users and heatings Re Likes in report	terrebed by the member terret Posts - 100 To gradmaktin service to some service to some some to som	planet4 and Quadative Planetestin control. http:// align.control. http:// fig.QASKOF Planetestin ory payload area to finet control. http:// align.control. http:// align.control. http:// align.control. http:// align.control.	589 (0): (red - 20h g take on to Tron Ni DeD's as ps://t.co/2 isotto - 1d g take on ds tron Ni DeD's as ps://t.co/2	Setthyl - Row Data the legaty with 2 with the set of the set	19 Tr af Backett af Secres true payloade at 5 Secres true payloade at 5	In team of the section of the sectio	j vt of moden of moden J vt
nationities anexes a comme stancido09 des 77% chockingguy webyined AskoKeartie Jonalch-R usAsterikate	the asciel http: Dplanet45t Posts in report 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	89 Graethylres. Hashtags in report 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Mentions in report	nbers (users and heatings Re Likes in report	transland by the number cent Posts - 100 13th level Wiz 11th level	planet4 and @Actin Dromestin cry payloas area to total control. http offe @AckOF Dromestin control. http 3 * @NonCoots of Interestin	589 (0)2 (red - 30h g bake on ds from Nic ToD's aso ps://t.co/) dooffe - 1 d ig take on ds from Nic DoD's aso ps://t.co/) Picard - 1/ g take on	sethyl - Rev Data the legality w Zeoland, commented (y US9601) - Rev Data the legality w Zeoland, commented (y US9601) - Rev Data the legality - Rev Data the legality	Serns true af Bochett at Secris true paylosable at af Bochett at Secris true paylosable at af Rochett at	In team of the second s) VS of modea) VS of modea)
nuelization shows t	the social https: Pplanet 45: Posts in report 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	89 Graethylres. Haantags in report 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Mentions in report	nbers (users and heatings Re Likes in report	Context by the number Context Posts - 100 13th level Was Context Us mits structure Josen Context Us mits structure Josen Patrick O Keef Patrick O Keef Context Us mits structure Josen Patrick O Keef Context Us mits structure Josen Context Us mits structure Josen Structure Josen Context Us mits structure Josen Structure Josen	planet4 and @Actin on payloas are to final control. http 3 ** fin @ActioN fin @ActioN fin @ActioN fin @ActioN fin @ActioN final action of the	589 (0): (red - 20h (s the on the form Nith DeD's are ps://t.co/0 (s the on the D's are ps://t.co/0 Pleard - 1 (s the on the form DeD's are ps://t.co/0	- Rew Data - Rew Data the legality: w Zeoland, casmae that yobbolocit - Rew Data the legality: w Zeoland, casmae that the legality: w Zeoland, the legality: w Zeoland, casmae that	39 Tr af Dackett at Secms true payloade at o af Bockett at Secms true payloade at o af Rockett at o	In terms into the second secon	y ya of macken of macken ya ya ya ya ya ya

Figure 18. Keyword Search 1: Community Analytics for top three users in community. Source: Scraawl (2021)

<u>User</u> @planet4589's community is the largest in the overall social graph for Keyword Search 1. The centrality of user @planet4589 demonstrates influence as he functions as the primary information conduit within this community. Directionality of the edges was not considered, although would enhance the understanding of the social graph.

2. Keyword Search 2: ((prc australia) OR (prc new zealand) OR (prc fiji) OR (prc palau) OR (prc papua new guinea))

a. Basic Statistics

The results from the Multi-feed Search generated 156 matching posts over a sevenday period. User @tommy_cleary tweeted the most in these search results, although was not highly ranked for mentions and retweets. This user @eluttwak was the most mentioned and retweeted by far among all users in this search. In addition, this same user was retweeted many more times in the search, with the overwhelming majority (over 11.5 times as many as the next highest) of retweets for this search originating with @eluttwak. Of the 354 locations referenced in this search, 164 (46.3%) of them have geographic association to Washington, D.C., 122 (34.4%) are geographically associated with China, 42 (11.8%) to Australia, with the remaining 7.3% allocated to multiple other nations. The top words used mirrored the top locations with the top four words being "Washington" (D.C.), "PRC," "Australia," and Beijing (Figure 19).

Social + New Repor	t 🗥 MyR	teports 🛛 🛔 My Profile	L.	Basic Statistics 📦 Ad	Ivanced Analytics 👻	Raw Data	a sharing ½ ○ ♥ ■ Sta ƏHelp 🕞 Logout
			Basic St	atistics			
Sources: 🖉 · F	Folder: Searc	ch Reports · Search terms: ((prc	australia) OR (p	orc new zealand) OR (prc fi	ji) OR (prc palau) OR (prc papua new guinea	i))
M Basic Statistics				¥ (156	01 t 0	D 0 ¥ 58	o 0 🗠 98
Status: Completed · Posts: 156 ·	Updated: 9	Mar, 2021 13:01			Timeline: 1 Mar, 2021	17:37 – 9 Mar, 2021	11:12 Actions -
Top Users	.	Top Words	11.	Top Hashtags	II	Top Mentions	
@tommy_cleary	13	Washington	164	#australia	5	@eluttwak	82
@acri_uts	5	Pro	156	#ccp	5	@acri_uts	19
@j_laurenceson	4	Australia	147	#taiwan	4	@meclarke114	8
@adam_ni	2	Beijing	87	#china	4	@mfa_china	7
@elenacollinson	2	India	86	#臺灣	4	@bangxiao_	7
134 total users De	etails >	488 total words	Details >	17 total hashtags	Details >	81 total mentions	Details >
Top URLs	I	Top Retweets		Top Languages		Top Geo Loca	tio
https://www.australiachinarel	8	RT @ELuttwak Washington P	81		 English Spanish 	Washington	164
https://twitter.com/jeffielam/	2	RT @meclarke114 New piece	7			China	122
https://www.aspistrategist.or	2	RT @acri_uts PERSPECTIVES	4			Australia	42
https://www.legislation.gov.a	2	RT @HudsonInstitute #Austr	3	99%		Hong Kong	5
http://bit.ly/20pwA12	1	RT @acri_uts WEBINAR 'Unp	3			India	5
25 total URLs De	atails >	18 retweeted tweets	Details >	2 total languages	Details >	354 total locations	View Map 🛛

Figure 19. Keyword Search 2 Basic Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)

41

b. Mention Statistics

One-third of the user mentions in this keyword search (82 mentions) belong to user @eluttwak which constitute 34.9% of the total. Half of all user posts (52.6%) in this search mention @eluttwak. The next highest user mentioned is @acri_uts with 19 mentions, that make up just 8.1% of total mentions in this keyword search (Figures 20 and 21).

L Basic Statistics / @ Mention	otationeo			156 🛛 1 t 0	0 W 58	O O 98
Status: Completed · Posts: 156 · I	Updated: 9 Mar, 2021 13:01			Timeline: 1 Mar, 20	21 17:37 – 9 Mar, 2021	11:12 • Actions -
Top 50 Mention Statistic	()					
« First < Prev Page: 1/5	5 Next> Last »			_	Search users	Q Clear
▼ Filter						C Exclude selected
Jsername 🗘	Mention count -	% of mentions 🗘	Post count \$	% of posts 🔶	User count \$	% of users
@eluttwak	82	34.9%	82	52.6%	81	60.4%
@acri_uts	19	8.1%	19	12.2%	15	11.2%
@meclarke114	8	3.4%	8	5.1%	7	5.2%
@mfa_china	7	3.0%	6	3.8%	1	0.7%
@bangxiao_	7	3.0%	7	4.5%	1	0.7%
©jeffielam	6	2.6%	6	3.8%	1	0.7%
@abcchinese	6	2.6%	6	3.8%	1	0.7%
@j_laurenceson	4	1.7%	4	2.6%	3	2.2%
@chinaconsydney	4	1.7%	4	2.6%	1	0.7%
@gallo_ways	4	1.7%	4	2.6%	4	3.0%
					4	CSV 🛓 JSON 🛓 XM
Timeline						

Mention Statistics

Figure 20. Keyword Search 2 Mention Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)

Mention Statistics - '@eluttwak'

Sources: 🕊 · Folder: Search Reports · Search terms: ((pro australia) OR (pro new zealand) OR (pro fiji) OR (pro palau) OR (pro papua new guines))



Figure 21. User @eluttwak's Mention Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)

c. Retweet Statistics

A story comparing Chinese influence across time originally tweeted by User @eluttwak was retweeted 81 times during this search. That constituted 71.1% of all retweets and more than half of all posts in this search (51.9%). These would suggest a high amount of trust in User @eluttwak based on the large number of individuals recycling the tweet. The user is a historian based in Bolivia. The knowledge of history and status as a third-party observer would bolster his reasons for informed and fair observations, which would favorably explain the trust in his tweets (Figures 22 and 23). **Retweet Statistics**

Sources: 🕊 · Folder: Search Reports · Search terms: ((prc australia) OR (prc new zealand) OR (prc fiji) OR (prc palau) OR (prc papua new guinea))

Status: Completed · Posts: 156 · Updated: 9 Mar, 2021 13:01		Timeline: 7	Mar, 2021 1.	7:37 – 9 Mar, 1	2021 11:12	Actions +
Top 50 Retweet Statistics					l	📬 Translate
«First <prev 1="" 2="" next="" page:=""> Last >></prev>			ßear	ch	٩	Clear
T I liber					ØExc	lude selected
Tweet ÷	Retweet count -	% of retweets \$	Post count \$	% of posts 🗢	User count ¢	% of users
RT @ELutwak Washington Post: "Donald Trump's victory in 2016 shattered a fragile understanding between Washington and Beijing Amazed at the persistence of this crude fallacy. It is Xi Jing Ping who changed things. Hence the identical trajectories of PRC rels w India, Australia, Sweden etc	81	71.1%	81	51.9%	81	60.4%
RT @meclarke114 New piece from me for @aori_uts on Australia and US China strategic competition https://t.co/QpRGXiyrDI	7	6.1%	7	4.5%	7	5.2%
RT @acri_uts PERSPECTIVES Be careful what you wish for: The risks of taking a punt on the pathway of US-PRC strategic competition UTS/XCRI Violing Fellow Dr Michael Clarke @meclarke114 writes on US-PRC externe competition and Australias strategic choices https://t.co/9DdCG016j3 https://t.co/UK.pdt218	4	3.5%	4	2.6%	4	3.0%
RT (eHudsonInstitute #Australia's greatest strategic challenge is the increasingly strident and corcrive behavior of #China, How can the US support its close ally in countering the #CCP? Read John Lee for more in the latest installment of Hudsons Look Ahead Series: https://t.co/AnWUSJpx3	3	2.6%	3	1.9%	3	2.2%
RT @aeri_uts WEBINAR 'Unpacking national security reporting in Australia's discussion of the PRC' Panellots @AttautMon & @Gallo. Ways will discuss the rising prominence of national security as an angle for AU reporting on reliations withe PRC. March 24, 12.30pm AEDT https://t.co/AJ6Cn/R2GS https://t.co/infeGerG4h0	3	2.6%	3	1.9%	3	2.2%
RT ©The, ChinaStory While 'PRC migrants are more likely to marry than other segments of the Australian community, a shared country of-origin is no guarantee of marital stability' write ©UTSFass' Elaine Jeffereys & @UNSWADK's Pan Wang. https://t.co/aAbUIRNmDO	2	1.8%	2	1.3%	2	1.5%
RT @acri.uts MONTHLY WRAP-UP February 2021 Beijing steadily continues to chip away at trade sectors in which Australia and the PRC have close liss. Education, LNG and live fait targeted this month. (eleancadinosa 6.e); Jauranesson examine major Aus-PRC developments: https://co.VMFWHdsHR20 https://co.VUg/UIJOn5	2	1.8%	2	1.3%	2	1.5%
RT @acri, uts. @, laurenceson reflects on PRC deputy head of mission in Australia Wang Xining's recent speech in comments to @JohnFPower @SCMPNews https://t.co/bFzN3mPDiz https://t.co/g4mWxxs2Udq	2	1.8%	2	1.3%	2	1.5%
DT meleyhhtumhull metecheckeesen work on disenors in Australia is really meet What I think		0.0%		0.6%	1	0.7%

Figure 22.

Keyword Search 2 Retweet Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)



Figure 23. Twitter Profile Analysis: @eluttwak. Source: Scraawl (2021)

d. Locations

Each location map tells a different story about the collected data. Furthermore, a post can appear on the map multiple times depending on the geo data it includes. Figure 24 comprises geo-referenced data only. From the Scraawl SocL subsection "Locations" that overlays tweet data on a map, it is seen that zero posts were geo-coded, 30 geo-referenced, and zero geo-profiled.



Figure 24. Keyword Search 2 Geographic-associated Tweets. Source: Scraawl (2021)

The composition of the geographically associated tweet data shows a high preponderance of tweets in Washington, D.C., China, and Australia. This corresponds strongly to the top word statistics and loosely to the top hashtag statistics. One tweet is shown as geocoded (Canada), and the geo-referenced (268 total tweets globally, green color) and geo-profiled tweets (84 total tweets globally, brown) are largely divided between the United States (117 tweets), China (137 tweets), and Australia (65 tweets).

e. Influence Discovery

The Influence Discovery score matches the level of influence by user degree as measured on the social graph. User @eluttwak ranked 100% on the influence scale for this search topic. This is consistent as he is the most connected user in the community with nearly double the degree of the next closest influencer (Figures 25–27).

Influence Discovery

Sources: 🐲 · F	older: Search Reports · Search terms: ((prc aust	ralia) OR (prc new zealand) OR (prc fiji) OR (pr	rc palau) OR (prc papua new guinea))
📶 Basic Statistics 🥖 📦 Advance	ed Analytics	y (156) Ø(1 t 0 🗖 0 w 😣 🗘 🖲 🗠 🥦
Status: Completed · Posts: 156 · I	Updated: 9 Mar, 2021 13:01	Timeline: 1 Mar, 2021 17:37	- 9 Mar, 2021 11:12 Rerun analytics
			hashtags in the social interaction graph. The scores of elghbors to the influence scores of a particular
Top Influential Users	រិទ្ធិ ០៖	Score Hashtag	gs 😫 Original Score
@eluttwak	100	#australia	2.3
@acri_uts	9.4	#ccp	2.3
@meclarke114	4.1	#china	2.1
@natashaskassam	2.8	#southkorea	2
@the_chinastory	2.4	#tax	1.4
@attardmon	2.1	#peopleservices	14
@gallo_ways	2.1	#prc	1.3
@gusrojasmatute	2	#india	1.2
@soc_imagination	2	#taiwan	1.2
@i_like_gin_jaw	2	#Taiwan	1.2

Figure 25. Keyword Search 2 Influence Discovery Metrics. Source: Scraawl (2021)

Top Connected Users	
Label	Degree
@eluttwak	81
@tommy_cleary	42
@acri_uts	23
@meclarke114	8
@elevtechlift	7
@j_laurenceson	7
@mediaactive	6
@thekidneydocto1	6
@hudsoninstitute	6
@johnblaxland1	5

Figure 26. Top Connected users for Keyword Search 2. Source: Scraawl (2021)

Community Analytics - '@eluttwak @mitsuya_niwa @qpw12wk2'



f. Community Metrics and Detection

The Community Detection visualization (Figure 28) shows the relative community strength of each community when compared to the others. The largest community contains 82 users and carries the most influence among these circles. The average community within this search contains eight members with 27 total communities discovered.

Community Detection





Keyword Search 2 Community Detection Visualization. Source: Scraawl (2021)

3. Keyword Search 3: ((pla australia) OR (pla new zealand) OR (pla fiji) OR (pla papua new guinea) OR (pla palau))

a. Basic Statistics

The results from the Multi-feed Search generated 126 matching posts over a sevenday period. There were no clear preferred users, and hashtags, mentions, or URLs among data of the same type. Top words included *palau, pla, social, and avul* and top hashtags included *#diainternacionaledeladona, #8m, # diadeladona, #8m2021*. Retweets and geographic data showed the clearest potential for salient information (Figure 29). Figure 30 gives a closer look at user statistics.

III Basic Statistics				¥ 126	0 t 0	D 50 W 50 G	0 🛆 100
				120		50 W 50 0	
Status: Completed · Posts: 126 ·	Updated: 9	9 Mar, 2021 13:01		Tin	neline: <i>1 Mar, 202</i>	1 20:35 – 9 Mar, 2021 12:1	7 🗘 🌣 Actions 🕶
Top Users		Top Words	Ш.	Top Hashtags	11	Top Mentions	П.
@duchmarc	4	Palau	123	#diainternacionaldeladona	36	@sialfutur	
@guevofrito1982	3	Pla	114	#8m	36	@duchmarc	4
@pumocat	3	Social	114	#diadeladona	34	@davidmelero	:
@tonitobella	3	Avui	87	#8m2021	34	@joaquimcampa	
@victor_font	3	Modernització	71	#catalunya	34	@silviapaneque	
106 total users De	tails 🗲	315 total words	Details 🗲	31 total hashtags	Details >	56 total mentions	Details 3
Top URLs	1	Top Retweets	h.,	Top Languages	L.	Top Geo Locatio	
nttp://www.palauplegamans	2	RT @davidmelero_ 🔴 Dura	33		Catalan English	Australia	
nttps://bit.ly/3kJTSLc	1	RT @DuchMarc ÀREA SOCIA	. 18		 Portuguese Tagalog 	Fiji	
https://www.tusnoticiasdelas	1	RT @DuchMarc ÀREA SOCIA	. 11	N	Spanish	New Zealand	
https://www.territoris.cat/arti	1	RT @DuchMarc ÀREA SOCIA	. 10	89%		Greenland	
https://www.target.com/p/10	1	RT @DuchMarc ÀREA SOCIA	. 9			China	
7 total URLs De	tails 🔉	13 retweeted tweets	Details >	5 total languages	Details 🔉	15 total locations	View Map

Basic Statistics

Figure 29.

Keyword Search 3: Basic Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)

				User St	tatistic	S				
	Sources: 9 · Folde	r: Search Report	ts · Search terms: ((pla australia) OR (pla new zeal	and) OR (pla fiji)	OR (pla papua	new guinea) OR (pla palau))	
<u>I</u> Basi	ic Statistics / 🛔 User Statistic	s				¥ 126	00 t	0 🖸 50 N	K 50 💿 🕕	م 100
status	:: Completed · Posts: 126 · Upda	ated: 9 Mar, 202	1 13:01			т	meline: 1 Mar,	2021 20:35 – 9 M	ar, 2021 12:11	Actions -
									l	
Гор	50 User Statistics									
« Fir	rst < Prev Page: 1/5	Next > Last	»					Search user	C	Clear
▼ Filte	er								• Ex	clude selected
		In This Report				On Twitter				
vatar	Username 🗢	Tweets -	Hashtags 💠	Mentions 💠	Likes 💠	Tweets 🗢	Likes 💠	Followers 💠	Friends 💠	Listed
9	@DuchMarc	4	0	4	165	27,016	19,756	7,981	434	105
1	@guevofrito1982	3	0	6	0	59,371	54,586	380	1,434	5
	@Pumocat	3	0	6	0	64,754	986	12,068	5,635	140
2	@ToniTobella	3	0	6	0	1,977	746	207	566	4
	@victor_font	3	0	6	0	14,170	13,305	84,288	448	300
	@AlbertMdna	2	0	4	0	2.459	2.307	1.069	397	26
_	@CarlosHeras10	2	0	4	0	27,284	19,420	643	843	9
	@Davidonfire01	2	0	4	0	2,217	5,425	98	338	1
٢	~									
100	@delsurodelnorte	2	0	4	0	7,761	34,070	92	223	1
2	@deshumanizado_	2	0	4	0	9,479	15,208	499	834	2

b. Mention Statistics

The top three accounts (@sialfutur, @duchmarc, and @davidmelero_) comprise two-thirds of all mentions for this search. Two of those accounts belong to photojournalists. Ninety-four percent of individuals mentioned one of these individuals in this search (Figure 31).
Mention Statistics

Sources: 🖉 · Fo	older: Search Reports · Search	1 terms : ((pla australia) OR (pla new zealand) OR (p	a fiji) OR (pla papua n	ew guinea) OR (pla pala	u))
Lttl Basic Statistics / @ Mention S	Statistics		¥ 🛙	6 0 t 0	5 0 W 50	S 0 🗠 100
Status: Completed · Posts: 126 · U	pdated: 9 Mar, 2021 13:01			Timeline: 1 Mar, 20	021 20:35 – 9 Mar, 2021	12:11 Actions -
Top 50 Mention Statistics	;					
« First < Prev Page: 1/5	Next > Last »				Search users	Q Clear
▼ Filter						Exclude selected
Username 💠	Mention count	% of mentions 🗘	Post count 🗘	% of posts 💠	User count \$	% of users 🗘
@sialfutur	52	26.0%	52	41.3%	34	32.1%
@duchmarc	48	24.0%	48	38.1%	33	31.1%
@davidmelero	33	16.5%	33	26.2%	33	31.1%
@joaquimcampa	6	3.0%	6	4.8%	6	5.7%
@silviapaneque	3	1.5%	3	2.4%	3	2.8%
@tonifreixa	3	1.5%	3	2.4%	3	2.8%
@territoriscat	3	1.5%	3	2.4%	2	1.9%
@marcmundet78	2	1.0%	2	1.6%	2	1.9%
@ellacayabyab_	2	1.0%	1	0.8%	1	0.9%
@ajuntamentpalau	2	1.0%	2	1.6%	1	0.9%

Figure 31. Keyword Search 3: Mention Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)

c. Retweet Statistics

Most significant in the retweets is a story retweeted by user @davidmelero______ describing a tense interaction between the national police (Figure 32). The retweeting of this story displays solidarity with the demonstrators in a sign of support. The other prominent retweets are all the same with permutations on the tweet text, artificially inflating their impact.

Retweet Statistics

Sources: 🕊 · Folder: Search Reports · Search terms: ((pla australia) OR (pla new zealand) OR (pla fiji) OR (pla papua new guinea) OR (pla palau))

Let Basic Statistics / 🗠 Retweet Statistics	¥ (126 0 0	t 🕛 🗖	50 W	50 💿 🛈	△ 100
Status: Completed · Posts: 126 · Updated: 9 Mar, 2021 13:01		Timeline: 1	Mar, 2021 20):35 – 9 Mar, 2	2021 12:11	🌣 Actions 🔻
Top 50 Retweet Statistics						🙀 Original
<pre>« First < Prev Page: 1/2 Next > Last ></pre>			Sear	ch	٩	Clear
TFilter					• Excl	ude selected
Tweet	Retweet count -	% of retweets 🗢	Post count \$	% of posts 🗢	User count 🗢	% of users ≑
RT @davidmelero During the demonstration today the national police delegation arrived in Via Laietana. The crowd of women shouted 'out of the occupation forces' as they descended towards Pla de Palau. # 8M2021 #DialnternacionalDeLaDona #DiaDeLaDona # 8M #catalunya https://t.co/4QzkePZsii	33	34.0%	33	26.2%	33	31.1%
RT @DuchMarc SOCIAL AREA @sialfutur Action plan in 4 main areas: 🍲 Transparency, Democratization and Modernization 🍲 Social Activation 👉 Let's Country, Let's City, Let's Neighborhood 👉 Partners at the Stadium, the Palace and Johan Cruyff Today, Transparency , Democratization and Modernization Fil	18	18.6%	18	14.3%	18	17.0%
RT @DuchMarc SOCIAL AREA @sialfutur Action plan in 4 main areas: 🏕 Transparency, Democratization and Modernization 🏠 Social Activation 🏠 Let's Country, Let's City, Let's Neighborhood 🏠 Partners at the Stadium, the Palace and Johan Cruyff Today, Let's Country, Let's City, Let's Neighborhood. Fil	11	11.3%	11	8.7%	11	10.4%



d. Locations

The geographically associated tweet data totals 89 tweets, 75 of which are geoprofiled and 14 are geo-referenced (Figure 33). The largest preponderance of tweets (48 tweets, geo-profiled) originated in Barcelona, Spain (Figure 34). This is unsurprising, though, as the top tweets during this time mentioned March 8th (International Women's Day) or Barcelona Futbal. User @sialfutur is running for president of the Barcelona Futbal club, boasting 93,000 followers. This demonstrates significant following and influence in this keyword search.

Locations

Sources: 🖉 · Folder: Search Reports · Search terms: ((pla australia) OR (pla new zealand) OR (pla fiji) OR (pla papua new guinea) OR (pla palau)) III Basic Statistics 🗴 126 © 0 t 0 🗖 50 x 50 O 0 🗠 100 Timeline: 1 Mar, 2021 20:35 - 9 Mar, 2021 12:11 Status: Completed · Posts: 126 · Updated: 9 Mar, 2021 13:01 & Act Locations Geo-coded posts have GPS coordinates recorded when posted. Geo-referenced posts have locations identified by analyzing their contents (can have multiple locations per post). Geo-profile posts are locations associated with the posting user's profile. A maximum of 100,000 posts are rendered for each category. + Geo-coded (0) Geo-referenced (14) Geo-profiled (75) 0 2 ۹ ۲ O New Zealand Zeamind

Figure 33. Keyword Search 3: Locations. Source: Scraawl (2021)



Locations

Folder: Search Reports · Search terms: ((pla australia) OR (pla new zealand) OR (pla fiji) OR (pla papua new guinea) OR (pla palau)) y 126 00 t0 050 Basic Statistics **VK** 50 00 △ 100 Timeline: 1 Mar, 2021 20:35 - 9 Mar, 2021 12:11 Status: Completed - Posts: 126 - Updated: 9 Mar, 2021 13:01 0 Locati Geo-coded po posts are loca cations identified by analyzing multiple locations per post). Geo-pro +
-Geo-coded (0) eo-profiled (75) ٩ Italy * Spain Madrid isbo

Figure 34. Keyword Search 3: Locations (Barcelona). Source Scraawl (2021)

e. Influence Discovery

The Influence Discovery analytic shows users @sialfutur and @duchmarc as most influential in their community (Figures 35–37). This measured, again, via normalized values representing the interactions of users and hashtags (Intelligent Automation, Inc., 2020b).

Influence Discovery

Sources: 🕊 · Folder: Search Reports · Search terms: ((pla australia) OR (pla new zealand) OR (pla fiji) OR (pla papua new guinea) OR (pla palau))

Lill Basic Statistics / 📦 Advanced Analytics	y 126 © 0 t 0	50	W 50	0	△) 100
Status: Completed - Posts: 126 - Updated: 9 Mar, 2021 13:01	Timeline: 1 Mar, 2021 20:35 – 9 Mar, 20:	21 12:11	► Rerun ana	alytics	Actions -

Scraawl Influence Discovery uses a ranking approach to compute normalized scores that represent the influence of users and hashtags in the social interaction graph. The scores of the top 10 most influential users/hashtags and impact ratios, which represent the relative importance of the contributions of neighbors to the influence scores of a particular user/hashtag, are shown.

Top Influential Users	🕲 Translate	Top Influential Hashtags	🕲 Translate
User	Score	Hashtag	Scor
@sialfutur	100	#diainternacionaldeladona	36.3
@duchmarc	94.5	#8m	36.3
@joaquimcampa	36.6	#8m2021	34.9
@davidmelero	33.8	#diadeladona	34.9
@silviapaneque	20	#catalunya	34.9
@tonifreixa	14.5	#plegirona	9
@cmclymer	9	#bustmbmc	9
@ellacayabyab_	9	#australia	5.4
@leahdella	9	#plaurgell	4.8
@reuters	9	#elpalauanglesola	4.8

Figure 35. Keyword Search 3: Influence Discovery. Source. Scraawl (2021).



Keyword Search 3: Social Graph. Source: Scraawl (2021).



Source: Scraawl (2021)

The Top Connected User for this search is @davidmelero____ with a degree ranking of 38. Users @duchmarc and @sialfutur each ranked a degree of 34. The social graph includes 184 vertices and 368 edges. Of note, these communities are not all connected, but rather have individual components of centrality that do not interact with one another.

f. Community Metrics and Detection

The largest community comprises 39 members, with the average community size of seven. There were 27 total communities discovered. Users @davidmelero___ and the hashtags #diainternacionaldeladona and #8m were included in the most prominent community (Figure 38).



Figure 38. Keyword Search 3: Community Detection. Source: Scraawl (2021).

4. Keyword Search 4: ((us military australia) OR (us military fiji) OR (us military new zealand) OR (us military papua new guinea) OR (us military palau))

a. Basic Statistics

The results from the Multi-feed Search generated 345 matching posts over a sevenday period. There were no unusually exceptional users or hashtags. However, user @jaredferrie, the word *military*, and tweets originating in Australia stood out. A news story by the politically center news organization Reuters was shared in a clear majority (Figure 39).

Socl + New Repor	t 🏘 My	Reports 🛔 My Profile	Ŀ	🔟 Basic Statistics 👘 Ad	lvanced Analytics 👻	🛢 Raw Data	You are screen sha 3 Help ➡ Logout
		E	Basic St	tatistics			
Sources: V · Folder: Search Rep	orts · Searc	ch terms : ((us military australia) Ol	R (us military	fiji) OR (us military new zea	land) OR (us military	papua new guinea) Ol	R (us military palau))
III Basic Statistics				₩ 345	00 t0	5 0 W 209	() () () ()
Status: Completed · Posts: 345 ·	Updated: 9	9 Mar, 2021 12:59			Timeline: Tiviar, 202	1 13:00 – 9 Mar, 2021	10:09 Actions •
Top Users	I	Top Words	l.	Top Hashtags	111	Top Mentions	. h .
@iusomc	4	Military	383	#fvey	48	@jaredferrie	59
@anilpms7	3	Australia	240	#canzuk	48	@canzuk	4
@doctorconcosta	3	Myanmar	140	#defence	48	@reuters	3
@ipdefenseforum	2	Coup	114	#australia	19	@robbiebarwick	1
@justcurious1313	2	Protests	96	#4corners	18	@janet_rice	1:
333 total users De	tails >	817 total words	Details	72 total hashtags	Details >	103 total mentions	Details 🕽
Top URLs	I.	Top Retweets	16	Top Languages		Top Geo Loca	tio
https://www.reuters.com/arti	11	RT @jaredferrie Considering t	59		English	Australia	15
https://www.news.com.au/te	3	RT @CANZUK "The combined	47			Burma	123
nttps://www.indianarrative.co	2	RT @Reuters Australia has su	34			Europe	62
nttps://bit.ly/381w4x8	1	RT @RobbieBarwick #4Corne	18	100%		Canada	63
https://economictimes.indiati	1	RT @janet_rice The Greens w	13			China	50
42 total URLs	tails >	25 retweeted tweets	Details >	1 total languages	Details >	661 total locations	View Map 9

Figure 39.

Keyword Search 4: Basic Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)

b. Mention Statistics

User @jaredferrie carried 59 mentions (16.4%) of the total. Other top mentions were to defense fan @canzuk and @reuters, carrying 13.1% and 9.5% of mentions in this search, respectively (Figure 40).

Mention Statistics

Sources: ¥ · Folder: Search Rep	orts · Search terms: ((us milit	ary australia) OR (us military	r fiji) OR (us military new	/ zealand) OR (us milita	ary papua new guinea) (DR (us military palau))
III Basic Statistics / @ Mention	Statistics		¥ (3	45 00 t0	D 50 ¥ 209	G 0 🛆 92
Status: Completed · Posts: 345 ·	Updated: 9 Mar, 2021 12:59			Timeline: 1 Mar, 20	021 13:00 - 9 Mar, 2021	1 10:09 Actions -
Top 50 Mention Statistic					2	
« First < Prev Page: 1/	5 Next> Last »				Search users	Clear Exclude selected
▼ Filter \$	Mention count	% of mentions 💠	Post count 🗘	% of posts 🗢	User count 🗢	
@jaredferrie	59	16.4%	59	17.1%	59	17.7%
@canzuk	47	13.1%	47	13.6%	47	14.1%
@reuters	34	9.5%	34	9.9%	34	10.2%
@robbiebarwick	18	5.0%	18	5.2%	18	5.4%
@janet_rice	13	3.6%	13	3.8%	13	3.9%
@planet4589	12	3.3%	12	3.5%	12	3.6%
@nikkeiasia	12	3.3%	12	3.5%	12	3.6%
@rapporteurun	11	3.1%	11	3.2%	11	3.3%
@ztozm	11	3.1%	11	3.2%	11	3.3%
@economictimes	10	2.8%	10	2.9%	10	3.0%

Figure 40. Keyword Search 4: Mention Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)

c. Retweet Statistics

Highest retweets are attributed to user @jaredferrie with 23% of retweets covering 17% of users. No other significant retweet data emerged from this search (Figure 41).

Retweet Statistics

Sources: # · Folder: Search Reports · Search terms: ((us military australia) OR (us military fiji)	OR (us military ne	w zealand) OR (us military paj	pua new guin	ea) OR (us mil	itary palau))
Lat Basic Statistics / 13 Retweet Statistics		315 🛛 🛈	t 🕕 🗖	50 v k	209 🙃 🕕	△₀ 92
Status: Completed - Posts: 345 - Updated: 9 Mar, 2021 12:59		Timeline:)	l Mar, 2021 13	3:00 – 9 Mar, 1	2021 10:09	🗘 Actions 🔻
Top 50 Retweet Statistics					1	🔋 Translate
« First < Prev Page: 1/3 Next > Last »			βearc	ch	٩	Clear
T Filter					⊖ Excl	lude selected
Tweet	Retweet count -	% of retweets \$	Post count ¢	% of posts \$	User count ¢	% of users 🗘
RT @jaredferrie Considering the Myanmar military's coup and deadly crackdown on protests, here is our December story based on leaked budget documents showing how the military stocked up with equipment made by companies in Europe, Ganada, Australia and the US: https://t.co/3gtuUgtLUC	59	23.0%	59	17.1%	59	17.7%
RT @CANZUK "The combined defense spending of these four countries would likely top US \$110 billion which would make the bloc the third largest in the world." counses https://t.co/HQImtFgjoz #FVEY #Defence #CANZUK	47	18.3%	47	13.6%	47	14.1%
RT @Reuters Australia has suspended its defense cooperation program with Myanmar, Foreign Affairs Minister Marise Payne said, amid an Intensified crackdown by the country's military on massive protests against last month's coup https://t.co/Dhftl7oRms	34	13.2%	34	9.9%	34	10.2%
RT @RobbleBarwick #4Corners China didn't start this military escalation, the USA & Australia did in 2011. After years of destroying the Middle East, Obama "pivoted" to Asia, moving 60% of US military into Asia, including US Marines in Darwin. If a dangerous country threatens you, what do you do? https://t.co/oKxUoGQugu	18	7.0%	18	5.2%	18	5.4%

Figure 41. Keyword Search 4: Retweet Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)

d. Locations

Location data shows 862 geographic associated data, with large sections of those tweets in the U.S., China, and Australia (Figure 42). This is much more clear indication of the competition for resources and influence in the region.





Figure 42. Keyword Search 4: Location Data. Source: Scraawl (2021)

e. Influence Discovery

In this search, user @jaredferrie ranked first as Top Influential User with a score of 100/100 (Figures 43 and 44). This demonstrates his importance to his community neighbors. Users that ranked second a third were @Reuters (Influence Discovery score = 58) and @janet_rice (Influence Discovery score = 22.7), respectively.

Influence Discovery

	ii ii ie		
Sources: 🖉 · Folder: Search Reports · S	Search terms: ((us military australia) OR	(us military fiji) OR (us military new zealand) OR (us	military papua new guinea) OR (us military palau))
📶 Basic Statistics / 📦 Advanced Ana	alytics	¥ (345) (0) (0)	t 0 🗖 50 💘 209 🗇 🔘 🛆 92
Status: Completed · Posts: 345 · Updat	ed: 9 Mar, 2021 12:59	Timeline: 1 Mar, 2021 13:00 - 9	Mar, 2021 10:09 Rerun analytics
		cores that represent the influence of users and hash he relative importance of the contributions of neight	
Top Influential Users	🕲 Tra	anslate Top Influential Hashtags	🕲 Translate
User		Score Hashtag	Score
@jaredferrie	100	#fvey	21.1
@reuters	58	#defence	21.1
@janet_rice	22.7	#canzuk	21.1
@nikkeiasia	21.1	#4corners	15.7
@canzuk	20.6	#myanmar	11
@planet4589	19.7	#whatshappeninginmyanmar	10.8
@economictimes	16.6	#milkteaalliance	7.9
@robbiebarwick	15.7	#freeandopenindopacific	3.5
@rapporteurun	10.2	#australia	3.3
@ztozm	7.1	#us	3.3

Figure 43. Keyword Search 4: Influence Discovery Scores. Source: Scraawl (2021).

Influence Analytics – '@jaredferrie'





62

f. Community Metrics and Detection

The Community Detection visualization shows that 70 communities were found in this search (Figure 45). The average community size was seven members and the largest, of which @jaredferrie belongs, boasted a staggering 60 members. The largest community label is named after the top influencers/hashtags in the community, thus users @lynn01532458 and @thomashaulien join @jaredferrie in Community 1.



Figure 45. Keyword Search 4: Community Detection Visualization. Source: Scraawl (2021).

As is seen in his specific Community Analytics profile, User @jaredferrie scores so highly based on his degree (degree=59). This is measured in edges to not only all neighbors, but the highest interacting neighbors in his community (Figure 46).

Community Analytics - '@jaredferrie @lynn01532458 @thomashaulien'



Figure 46. Community Analytics: User @jaredferrie. Source: Scraawl (2021)

5. Account Monitoring Search 1: (fromsonoftaiwan OR @sonoftaiwan) OR (fromUSPacificFleet OR @USPacificFleet) OR (fromthejointstaff OR @thejointstaff) OR (fromINDOPACOM OR @INDOPACOM) OR (fromWIONews OR @WIONews) OR (from:PacificMarines OR @PacificMarines) OR (from:Japan_pac OR @Japan_pac) OR (from:CN_Australia OR @CN_Australia) OR (from:Global_Mil_Info OR @Global_Mil_Info)

a. Basic Statistics

The Account Monitoring (AM) search is useful within Scraawl if there are several user accounts where interactions are to be analyzed for the purposed of determining community behavior This can be due to clustering, mutual degrees of interaction, likes, shares, follows, mentions, or retweets the same or similar data. Therefore, for the purposes of determining influence, the basic and advanced tools within the Scraawl suite will accomplish this.

The Account Monitoring feature of Scraawl will output the same reports generated from Multi-feed Search, Premium Search, and Premium Advanced Search. The differences in the search results, however, are vast. There were 25,737 posts retrieved, In addition, there were greater degrees of centrality uncovered than previously thought. User @wionews was the top user throughout, with Top Mentions and Top Retweets attributed. Top words and locations centered around India (Figure 47).

Basic Statistics



Figure 47. AM Search 1 Results. Source: Scraawl (2021)

b. Mention Statistics

World Is One News (user @wionews, WION) is a New Delhi-based international news agency, serving content in English (World Is One News, 2021). There are 5.6 times as many mentions (16,163 mentions versus 2,858 mentions) to @wionews than to the DOD IndoPaCom page (Figure 48). This is consistent with other prominent search data.

Mention Statistics

Sources: # • Folder: Account Monitoring Reports • Report name: Other_Pac_Tw_Accts • Accounts: (from:sonoftaiwan OR @sonoftaiwan) OR (from:USPacificFleet OR @USPacificFleet) OR (from:thejointstaff) OR (from:INDOPACOM OR @INDOPACOM) OR (from:WIONews OR @WIONews) OR (from:PacificMarines OR @PacificMarines) OR (from:Japan_pac OR @Japan_pac) OR (from:CN_Australia OR @CN_Australia) OR (from:Global_Mil_Info OR @Global_Mil_Info)

III Basic Statistics / @ Menti	ion Statistics					
Status: Completed · Posts: 25,	737 · Updated: 10 Mar, 2021	07:08		Timeline: 2 Mar, 20	021 00:00 – 10 Mar, 202	1 07:04 🗘 Actions 🗸
Top 50 Mention Statis	tics					
« First < Prev Page:				[Search users	Q Clear
▼ Filter						Exclude selected
Username 🗘	Mention count -	% of mentions \$	Post count \$	% of posts 🗢	User count 🗘	% of users 🖨
@wionews	16,163	23.9%	16,135	62.7%	9,527	70.7%
@indopacom	2,858	4.2%	2,543	9.9%	1,388	10.3%
@palkisu	2,428	3.6%	2,373	9.2%	1,739	12.9%
@pfizer	1,440	2.1%	1,426	5.5%	1,199	8.9%
@uspacificfleet	1,291	1.9%	1,291	5.0%	728	5.4%
@thejointstaff	1,285	1.9%	1,282	5.0%	678	5.0%
@usnavy	799	1.2%	601	2.3%	405	3.0%
@mynation_bh	658	1.0%	658	2.6%	111	0.8%
@srirudybaba	656	1.0%	656	2.5%	112	0.8%
@mynation_net	654	1.0%	654	2.5%	111	0.8%
					4	CSV 📥 JSON 📥 XML

Figure 48.	AM Search 1 Mention Data. Source: Scraawl
	(2021).

c. Retweet Statistics

Timeline

As the retweets show, a news story from WION related to India's successful response to the coronavirus pandemic resonates and is highly retweeted within India. This story was retweeted nearly twice as much as it is second-most popular tweet concerning vaccines (Figure 49).

Retweet Statistics

Sources: ¥ • Folder: Account Monitoring Reports - Report name: Other_Pac_Tw_Accts - Accounts: (from:sonoftaiwan OR @sonoftaiwan) OR (from:USPacificFleet OR @USPacificFleet) OR (from:thejointstaff OR @thejointstaff) OR (from:INDOPACOM OR @INDOPACOM) OR (from:WIONews OR @WIONews) OR (from:PacificMarines OR @PacificMarines) OR (from:Japan_pac OR @Japan_pac) OR (from:CN_Australia OR @CN_Australia) OR (from:Global_Mil_Info OR @Global_Mil_Info)

LM Basic Statistics / 🛱 Retweet Statistics						
Status: Running · Posts: 25,737 · Updated: 10 Mar, 2021 07:08		Timeline: 2	Mar, 2021 00:1	00 – 10 Mar, 2	2021 07:04	✿ Actions ▼
Top 50 Retweet Statistics						🕅 Translate
« First Prev Page: 1/5 Next > Last »			Searc	:h	٩	Clear
TFilter					Exc	lude selected
Tweet	Retweet count -	% of retweets \$	Post count \$	% of posts \$	User count 🗢	% of users ≑
RT @WIONews #Gravitas India was called a pandemic 'disaster', Today, India is a pandemic success story. Wuhan virus cases and deaths - both are down. How did the world's second-most populous nation turn the tide? @palkisu brings you the answers. https://t.co/dKAwbq48yb	1,975	10.5%	1,975	7.7%	1,974	14.6%
RT @WI0News #Gravitas @Pfizer has become a terror. The US pharma company is reportedly asking for military bases and sovereign assets as guarantee for vaccines. @palkisu has the details. https://t.co/ozt0QsuaE5	1,020	5.4%	1,020	4.0%	1,019	7.6%
RT @WIONews #GravitasPlus with @palkisu The year is 2021. Women are still fighting for the most primitive of rights. A woman does not have the right over her own body. She is killed because of her gender. She is not allowed to work, go to school. What are you celebrating this Women's Day? https://t.co/nzdj1rdbmc	409	2.2%	409	1.6%	409	3.0%
RT @WIONews #Gravitas The British monarchy is facing its biggest crisis. The UK's economy is in a mess, its healthcare is on a ventilator. But guess what British Parliamentarians are concerned about? India. @palkisu asks-When will the UK get over its colonial hangover? https://t.co/abAJNOQw1T	378	2.0%	378	1.5%	378	2.8%

Figure 49. AM Search 1: Retweet Data. Source: Scraawl (2021).

d. Locations

Geo-referenced tweets (tweets that reference a specific location) dominated the gathered data, as 60.9% of tweets were geo-referenced to India (Figure 50). Geo-profiled tweets (tweets with associated location data in their profiles) assumed 38.7%.

Locations



Figure 50. AM Search 1: Geo-associated Tweet Data. Source: Scraawl (2021)

e. Influence Discovery

The user @wionews ranks 100% on Influence Discovery. This is consistent with the preference of other users in the community to retweet and share posts from @wionews (Figure 51).

Influence Discovery

Sources: 🕊 • Folder: Account Monitoring Reports • Report name: Other_Pac_Tw_Accts • Accounts: (from:sonoftaiwan OR @sonoftaiwan) OR (from:USPacificFleet OR @USPacificFleet) OR (from:thejointstaff OR @thejointstaff) OR (from:INDOPACOM OR @INDOPACOM) OR (from:WIONews OR @WIONews) OR (from:PacificMarines OR @PacificMarines) OR (from:Japan_pac OR @Japan_pac) OR (from:CN_Australia OR @CN_Australia) OR (from:Global_Mil_Info)

Basic Statistics /	C Advanced Analytics

Status: Completed · Posts: 25,799 · Updated: 10 Mar, 2021 07:20

Scraawl Influence Discovery uses a ranking approach to compute normalized scores that represent the influence of users and hashtags in the social interaction graph. The scores of

Timeline: 2 Mar, 2021 00:00 - 10 Mar, 2021 07:18 > Rerun analytics Actions -

the top 10 most influential users/hashtags and impact ratios, which represent the relative importance of the contributions of neighbors to the influence scores of a particular user/hashtag, are shown.

Top Influential Users	🍇 Translate	Top Influential Hashtags		🔯 Translate
User	Score	Hashtag		Score
@wionews	100	#gravitas	29.5	
@palkisu	16	#gravitasplus	8.9	
@indopacom	15.1	#myanmar	7.4	
@dimi	7.8	#freeandopenindopacific	4.9	
@sendansullivan	7.1	#sasc	4.1	
@global_mil_info	4.8	#usnavy	2.4	
@uspacificfleet	4.6	#freedompineapples	2	
@thejointstaff	2.2	#internationalwomensday	1.6	
@chinasanworu	2	#todayinhistory	1.5	
@pfizer	1.7	#iwd2021	1.4	

Figure 51. AM Search 1: Influence Discovery. Source: Scraawl (2021).

f. Community Metrics and Detection

The AM Search 1 uncovered over 25,000 posts with 50 communities. Each of the linked communities is connected through a handful of users or hashtags. Figure 52 calls out the community clustered around user @wionews, While Figure 53 gives comparison to degree.



Figure 52. AM Search 1: User @wionews Social Graph. Source: Scraawl (2021)

Top Connected Users	
Label	Degree
@wionews	9,962
@palkisu	1,785
@indopacom	1,471
@pfizer	1,199
@uspacificfleet	763
@thejointstaff	678
@usnavy	431
@sonoftaiwan	376
@dimi	323
@global_mil_info	292

Figure 53. AM Search 1: User @wionews Influence by Degree. Source: Scraawl (2021).

6. Account Monitoring Search 2: (fromSinoDefence OR @SinoDefence) OR (fromzlj517 OR @zlj517) OR (fromCDF_Aust OR @CDF_Aust) OR (fromDeptDefence OR @DeptDefence) OR (fromRfmf_Media OR @Rfmf_Media) OR (fromADFinPNG OR @ @ADFinPNG) OR (from:CDF_PNGDF OR @CDF_PNGDF) OR (from:IPDefenseForum OR @IPDefenseFOrum) OR (from:NZDefenceForce OR @NZDefenceForce) OR (from:CDF_NZ OR @CDF_NZ)

a. Basic Statistics

The results from the Multi-feed Search generated 7,303 matching posts over a seven-day period (Figure 54). User @ipdefenseforum was the most active followed by the official spokesperson for the Chinese military, user @zlj517. Chinese-focused information dominated top words and location information this search.

Basic Statistics

Sources: Y - Folder: Account Monitoring Reports - Report name: DefenseMonitorFull - Accounts: (from:SinoDefence OR @SinoDefence) OR (from:ZIJ517 OR @ZIJ517) OR (from:CDF_Aust OR @CDF_Aust) OR (from:DeptDefence OR @DeptDefence) OR (from:Rfmf_Media OR @Rfmf_Media) OR (from:ADFinPNG OR @ADFinPNG) OR (from:CDF_PNGDF OR @CDF_PNGDF) OR (from:IPDefenseForum OR @IPDefenseForum) OR (from:XZDefenceForce OR @NZDefenceForce) OR (from:CDF_NZ OR @CDF_NZ)

Top Users	ll	Top Words	<u> </u>	Top Hashtags	<u> </u>	Top Mentions	I
pipdefenseforum	121	Chinese	1,387	#auspol	501	@zlj517	4,4
ي 2lj517	103	China	944	#takeusbacktochina	356	@deptdefence	1,5
omeiliie3	62	Data	603	#china	330	@spokespersonchn	8
psheva04095627	59	Year	592	#cpec	291	@lindareynoldswa	7
achengyang521ll	55	Defence	558	#bri	246	@australian_navy	5
,735 total users D	etails 🗲	8,905 total words	Details	698 total hashtags	Details 🕽	2,132 total mentions	Details
Гор URLs	h	Top Retweets	.	Top Languages	.	Top Geo Locatio	.
ttps://www.expat.com/en/e	20	RT @Senator_Patrick After all	408		 English Chinese 	China	7
ttps://twitter.com/harasige7	13	RT @zlj517 Data shows #Chi	159	18%	Japanese Urdu	Canadian	2
ttps://dailytimes.com.pk/72	9	RT @zlj517 Happy Chinese N	132		Tagalog	Pakistan	1
ttp://covert.com.pk/epaper/	8	RT @zlj517 You'd better keep	113	76%		Australia	1
ttps://zd.net/20EmUQr	7	RT @zlj517 You'd better keep	110			India	
22 total URLs	etails >	814 retweeted tweets	Details >	32 total languages	Details >	1.996 total locations	View Map

Figure 54. AM Search 2: Basic Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)

b. Mention Statistics

Jul Basic Statistics

Seventeen percent (17.2%) of mentions in this search (4,412 mentions) are attributed to the PLA account and 6.1% of mentions (1,558 mentions) attributed to Australia's defense department account. This is expected as Australia is China's main competitor in spreading influence in Oceania (Figure 55).

Mention Statistics

Status: Completed · Posts: 7,303 ·	opualed. 20160, 2021 14.03			1111cline: 707 cb, 202	1 00:00 – 20 Feb, 2021	14:05 Actions •
Top 50 Mention Statistics « First < Prev Page: 1/5	Next > Last »				Search users	Q Clear
T Filter						C Exclude selected
Username 🗢	Mention count 🗸	% of mentions	Post count \$	% of posts 🔶	User count 🔶	% of users
@zlj517	4,412	17.2%	4,399	60.2%	2,234	59.8%
@deptdefence	1,558	6.1%	1,557	21.3%	1,032	27.6%
@spokespersonchn	843	3.3%	840	11.5%	380	10.2%
@lindareynoldswa	716	2.8%	672	9.2%	340	9.1%
@australian_navy	579	2.3%	579	7.9%	302	8.1%
@senator_patrick	547	2.1%	545	7.5%	477	12.8%
@adfinpng	523	2.0%	522	7.1%	270	7.2%
@qldfes	505	2.0%	504	6.9%	264	7.1%
@aushcpng	497	1.9%	497	6.8%	254	6.8%
@mfa_china	396	1.5%	386	5.3%	201	5.4%

Figure 55.	AM Search 2: Mention Statistics. Source: Scraawl
	(2021)

c. Retweet Statistics

Lill Basic Statistics / @ Mention Statistics

The top retweeted post centered on Chinese espionage from user @Senator_Patrick, an independent Senator for South Australia (Figure 56). His position within the political system suggests a high degree of trust, which accounts for high retweeting of his post.

Retweet Statistics

III Basic Statistics / 13 Retweet Statistics						
Status: Completed · Posts: 7,303 · Updated: 20 Feb, 2021 14:09		Timeline: 13	Feb, 2021 00:	00 – 20 Feb, 2	2021 14:05	🌣 Actions 🔻
Top 50 Retweet Statistics						🔋 Translate
« First < Prev Page: 1/5 Last »			Searc	sh	٩	Clear
T Filter					🗢 Exc	lude selected
Tweet +	Retweet count -	% of retweets \$	Post count \$	% of posts 🗢	User count \$	% of users 🗧
RT @Senator_Patrick After all that's been said about Chinese espionage risks, it's gobsmackingly stupid that @DeptDefence should still be storing info with a Chinese controlled data company. Other agencies have left Global Switch but Defence has hopelessly stayed. #auspol https://t.co/fcC3UHdLc6	408	12.5%	408	5.6%	408	10.9%
RT @zlj517 Data shows #China's box office during the #SpringFestival holiday hits a new record with 7.8 billion yuan (\$1.2 billion) in takings and 160 million visits. https://t.co/f4pmJy2c3r	159	4.9%	159	2.2%	159	4.3%
RT @zlj517 Happy Chinese New Year of the Ox! I wish you good health, happiness in your life and every success in your career in the New Yearl https://t.co/R50g3GZSXN	132	4.0%	132	1.8%	130	3.5%
RT @z]j517 You'd better keep the hat of *#ArbitraryDetention* for yourself. #MengWanzhou did not violate any Canadian law, but was arbitrarily detained for more than two years. https://t.co/EJK13wQOk0	113	3.5%	113	1.5%	113	3.0%
RT @zlj517 You'd better keep the hat of "#ArbitraryDetention" for yourself. #MengWanzhou did not violate any Canadian law, but was arbitrarily detained for more than two years. https://t.co/H56mTb7q1L	110	3.4%	110	1.5%	110	2.9%
RT @MuYangLee_XWKD 總立堅官方認識的推特賬號 @zlj517 關注了一個名為[qornograficx]的同性 戀色情帳號,被外國網友抓包,並錄製現類加以諷刺。https://t.co/8uc1bLNSKk	78	2.4%	78	1.1%	78	2.1%

Figure 56. AM Search 2: Retweet Statistics. Source: Scraawl (2021)

d. Locations

Geo-profiled tweets account for 67.8% of geographically associated data from this search (7,136 geo-profiled tweets / 10,523 all geo-associated data). This high proportion of tweet data originating in China is a clear indication that the Chinese prefer to initiate Twitter data about Chinese events over other agencies reporting about China (Figure 57). This is further shown in Figure 58 which displays the density of tweets via a heat map (Figure 58).

Locations

Full - Accounts: (from:SinoDefence OR @SinoDefence) OR (from:zij517 OR @zij517) OR (from:CDF_Aust dia OR @Rfmf_Media) OR (from:ADFinPNG OR @ADFinPNG) OR (from:CDF_PNGDF OR @CDF_PNGDF) from:NZDefenceForce OR @NZDefenceForce) OR (from:CDF_NZ OR @CDF_NZ) M Basic Statistics Status: Completed · Posts: 15,965 · Updated: 10 Mar; 2021 23:33 Timeline: 13 Feb, 2021 00:00 - 10 Mar, 2021 23:24 Enriche φ. Loca ns per post). Geo-r Geo-coded (90) Geo-referenced (3,297 Geo-profiled (7,136) + 2 0.9 00 ۹ ۲ 282 000 New Zealand 020

Figure 57. AM Search 2: Location Data. Source: Scraawl (2021).

Heat Map

DR @SinoDefence) OR (from:zlj517 OR @zlj517) OR (from:CDF_Aust inPNG OR @ADFInPNG) OR (from:CDF_PNGDF OR @CDF_PNGDF) hceForce) OR (from:CDF_NZ OR @CDF_NZ)

<text>

Figure 58. AM Search 2: Location Heat Map. Source: Scraawl (2021).

e. Influence Discovery

User @zlj517 ranked 100% on the influence scale for this search topic (Figure 59).



Figure 59. AM Search 2: Influential Users Scores. Source: Scraawl (2021).

f. Community Metrics and Detection

User @zlj517's degree of connectedness and the social graph for the closest vertices near them are shown in Figures 60 and 61. The number of meaningful connections to user @zlj517 via edge count is more than triple that of the Australian defense account @deptdefence.

Top Connected Users	
Label	Degree
@zlj517	4,599
@deptdefence	1,398
@spokespersonchn	742
@senator_patrick	484
@imfa_china	429
@australian_navy	410
@lindareynoldswa	403
@tzhang_hoqing	397
@chinamission2un	373
@gfwfrog	341

Figure 60. AM Search 2: Influential Users Scores by Degree. Source: Scraawl (2021).



Figure 61. AM Search 2: Social Graph with User @zlj517 callout. Source: Scraawl (2021).

B. ANALYSIS

1. Data Trends

As a result of these data, the following information trends can be derived from them and offered as generalities:

- The opinions and thoughts of users who have experience within the same field as the content shared tend to be followed more closely and shared more widely (Figures 9, 11, 20, 51).
- A user's influence ranking is closely correlated to their mention and retweet scores (Figures 48 and 51, 55 and 59).

- Degree rankling (via edge count) is normally closely related to high influence scores (Figures 55, 59, 60)
- A top user rankling (by high individual activity) does not imply high rankling elsewhere (mentions, retweets) (Figures 9, 13)
- Geo-referenced and geo-profiled data were more common than geo-coded tweets (Figures 12, 24, 33, 42, 50, 57).
- Users within similar communities of engagement are typically connected in more than one meaningful way (Figure 45).
- Users who reside in the same geography as the discovered information are mentioned and retweeted with favor over those who are not (Figure 56).
- Media outlets continue to carry prominent influence online (Figures 48, 49, 51).
- Data searches that are user-focused return more meaningful information than keyword-based searches (Keyword Searches 1–4 vs Account Monitoring Searches 1–2).
- Democratic countries favored geo-referenced tweets while non-democratic countries favored geo-profiled data. This suggests a strong desire by the non-democratic nations to control the narrative surrounding events within their borders (Figures 33 and 34, 57 and 58).

2. CARVER Results

As a primary result of the data, placed within the context of the operational vignette, the following CARVER matrix is offered in summary:

Table 1	0.
---------	----

Search Key Findings

CARVER Key Findings	С	А	R	V	Е	R
Keyword Search 1	High influence shared by experts' reporting / commenting on potentially damaging stories	All information readily available via open sources	Pace of reporting suppresses damaging stories	Potentially damaging news stories difficult to deny	Various, political impacts	How are the nations able to evaluate sensitivity of reporting
Keyword Search 2	Sensitive information provides tension between nations	All information readily available via open sources	Pace of reporting suppresses damaging stories	Information revelation can contain classified reporting	Political	Information recognizable as sensitive
Keyword Search 3	Prominent information less critical, highly influential	All information readily available via open sources	Pace of reporting suppresses damaging stories	Reporting on futbal vulnerable, unlikely to be exploited	Medium impacts to population / media	Non-sensitive information
Keyword Search 4	Sensitive information critical to international tensions	All information readily available via open sources	Pace of reporting suppresses damaging stories	Weapons reporting vulnerable to international propagation	Political, population, media effects	Information recognizable as sensitive
Account Monitoring 1	Reporting in pandemic response critical to confidence in national leadership	All information readily available via open sources	Pace of reporting suppresses damaging stories	International reporting leaves stories vulnerable for exploitation	Effects across political, population, and media	Information recognizable as sensitive
Account Monitoring 2	Critical information regarding Chinese espionage	All information readily available via open sources	Pace of reporting suppresses damaging stories	Information exploitable, but minimally	Potential damaging effects across political, population, and media	Information recognizable as sensitive

Target	Criticality	Access-	Recover-	Vulner-	Effect	Recogniz-
		sibility	ability	ability		ability
Government	5	3	3	3	4	5
of Red						
Liberal	5	5	3	5	5	5
Population						
Conservative	5	5	3	3	3	4
Population						
Red Media	5	5	3	4	4	5
Blue / Green	5	5	3	5	4	5
Media						

Table 11. CARVER Results

The Criticality of the information proved high for all data. The accessibility of the information would be ranked high except there are indications (based on geography of tweet data) that it is highly controlled from the national government level. Recoverability for damaging information is heavily contingent on the source and how widely distributed the information is. Vulnerability measures are closely tied to accessibility of the information within the Twitter ecosystem. Effects can vary based on what the information happens to be and Recognizability metrics are closely related to Criticality, as the data obtained seemed to be well-curated by those sharing.

In addition, it is with these six measures in mind that planners seeking to leverage influence should include the visualizations within Scraawl that act as aids in order to have smartly designed briefings with quality information. The inclusion of statistics related to top words, links, and hashtags and prominent mentions, retweets, and social graph data will ensure that influence information captured in Scraawl is properly analyzed to be classified as responsible Visual Analytics.

V. CONCLUSIONS AND SUGGESTIONS FOR FUTURE RESEARCH

A. CONCLUSIONS

When examining the research questions proposed in this thesis, we can make the following observations:

- In what specific ways can information flow at the Marine Expeditionary Force Information Group (MIG) be enhanced?
- The MIG, when leveraging Scraawl, must seek to leverage the advanced analytics suite in order to find the most pertinent information and relevant visuals. This will ensure that information received and communicated is clear, engaging, and easily absorbed.
- 2. How can information pertinent to OIE be communicated more effectively?
- A major limitation of the software is the inability to run classified reports and elevate the classification of that information. The Marine Corps' information practitioners should seek to integrate Scraawl at the Secret / Top Secret level.
- 3. What are the relevant metrics and the current standards (MOEs / MOPs)?
- Relevant metrics from this thesis center around increase in influence by way of followership and acceptance of messaging. Methods of performance will vary depending on command and mission objectives. However, methods of effectiveness can take shape as any or all of the following: increase in retweets, like, follows, or mentions and a decrease in similar metrics for competitors.
- 4. How does ID enhance the above?
- Information design enhances the above by offering a systematic, repeatable process to understand and simplify complex information. In

addition, ID assists the cells of the ICC with the ability to produce information briefings that are clear, engaging, and easily absorbed,

B. FUTURE RESEARCH

1. Alternative Application 1: Other Scraawl Tools

The Scraawl suite contains four primary modules which gives Scraawl users the ability to analyze publicly available data, pictures, video, and unstructured data. They are SocL ("social"), PixL ("pixel"), Txt ("text"), and TrndZ ("trends")(Intelligent Automation, Inc., 2020b). This thesis primarily utilized the Scraawl SocL module, but future work could leverage image, text, and raw data analysis in deriving credible information. There is much within Scraawl that can assist the MIG.

2. Alternative Application 2: Secure Internet Protocol Router for Scraawl (SIPR Scraawl)

This research project focused primarily on information that can be obtained opensource and via standard search methods on Twitter and other platforms. The military information practitioner, however, is routinely searching for meaning via information channels not accessible to the public. It is in these cases that a secure way of searching and discovering information that resides at a higher classification would be most beneficial.

3. Alternative Application 3: Enhanced Social Network Analysis

This research included the basic social network analysis techniques of analyzing vertices, edges, and degree. There are many more techniques that can provide richer analysis of social data, namely eigenvectors, betweenness, and closeness for undirected networks, and indegree, outdegree, input domain, proximity prestige, and hubs/authorities for directed networks.

In addition, topographical characteristics of networks were not considered. Some features of topology not considered were average path length, diameter, density, average degree, and centralization.

Furthermore, characteristics of subgroups, brokers and bridges are also germane to influence analyses.

4. Alternative Application 4: Other Software

In the study of social network analysis, there are many tools available that provide the analyses mentioned in the previous application section. While those measures are tangential in Scraawl, they are primary features found in some software. Two additional software products that can aid the analyst are Gephi (a tool for social network analysis and visualization) and Quantum Graphical Information System (QGIS) (a tool that aids in analysis of geospatial data via intuitive graphical user interface). Both products are capable of producing graphics that meet ID based on the relevant and intuitive nature of the visualizations created.

5. Alternative Application 5: Other MIG Tools

In pursuit of the MIG commander's information objectives, the ICC utilizes many software systems. Additional systems that can enhance information received in this thesis can include the following: Microsoft Power BI, Pulse, Open IO, Talk-Walker, Meltwater, Palantir, C2IE, Web-ISSA, and FadeMist. THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

LIST OF REFERENCES

- Berger, D. (2020a). CMC-38 force design 2030 report phase 1 and 2. Headquarters Marine Corps. Retrieved from https://www.hqmc.marines.mil/Portals/142/Docs/ CMC38%20Force%20Design%202030%20Report%20Phase%20I%20and%20II. pdf?ver=2020-03-26-121328-460
- Berger, D. (2020b). The case for change: Meeting the principal challenges facing the corps. Marine Corps Gazette, 104(6). https://mca-marines.org/wp-content/ uploads/The-Case-for-Change.pdf
- Cordray III, R., & Romanych, M. J. (2005). Mapping the information environment. IO Sphere, Summer 2005, 7–10. https://www.quantico.marines.mil/Portals/147/Docs/ MCIOC/IORecruiting/MappingtheInformationEnvironmentIOSphere Summer2005.pdf
- Cunningham, D., Everton, S., & Murphy, P. (2016). Understanding dark networks: A strategic framework for the use of social network analysis. Rowman & Littlefield.
- Department of Defense. (2018). Summary of the 2018 national defense strategy. https://dod.defense.gov/Portals/1/Documents/pubs/2018-National-Defense-Strategy-Summary.pdf
- DOMO. (n.d.). Data never sleeps 6.0. https://web-assets.domo.com/blog/wp-content/ uploads/2018/05/18_domo_data-never-sleeps-6verticals.pdf
- Intelligent Automation, Inc. (2020a). Scraawl community detection. Discovering communities in social networks. https://classroom.scraawl.com/pluginfile.php/ 234/course/section/24/Scraawl-Community_Detection.pdf?time=1610747197106
- Intelligent Automation, Inc. (2020b). Scraawl influence discovery. Influence discovery in social Networks. https://classroom.scraawl.com/pluginfile.php/234/course/section/24/Scraawl-Influence_Discovery.pdf?time=1610747181415
- Joint Chiefs of Staff. (2012). Information operations (JP 3-13). https://www.jcs.mil/ Portals/36/Documents/Doctrine/pubs/jp3_13.pdf
- Keim, D., Mansmann, F., Stoffel, A., & Ziegler, H. (n.d.). *Visual analytics*. University of Konstanz, Germany. http://infovis.uni-konstanz.de
- Labaj, L., & Bencie, L. (2018). *The CARVER target analysis and vulnerability assessment methodology: A practical guide to evaluating security vulnerabilities.* Security Management International.
- Olsen, J. (2015). *Airpower reborn: The strategic concepts of John Warden and John Boyd.* Naval Institute Press. ProQuest.

- Potts, D. (2003). *The big issue: command and combat in the information age*. DOD Command and Control Research Program.
- Robins, G. (2015). Fundamental network concepts and ideas. In *Doing social network research: Network-based research design for social scientists*. SAGE Publications Ltd. https://doi.org/10.4135/9781473916753
- United States Marine Corps. (2019, July 16). Commandant's planning guidance: 38th commandant of the marine corps (CMC CPG 2019). https://www.marines.mil/ Portals/1/Publications/Commandant's%20Planning%20Guidance_2019.pdf?ver= 2019-07-17-090732-937
- World Is One News. (2021). Wion (world is one news). In Wikipedia. https://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=WION_(TV_channel)& oldid=1027839550

INITIAL DISTRIBUTION LIST

- 1. Defense Technical Information Center Ft. Belvoir, Virginia
- 2. Dudley Knox Library Naval Postgraduate School Monterey, California